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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (¥ in Lacs)
19,692 15,593 11,891
1,001 922 705
1,532 1,021 292
1,074 1,074 1,074
2,655 376 (646)
1,188 209 245
2,542 1,241 184
5.08% 5.91% 5.93%
7.78% 6.55% 2.46%
14.26 9,51 271

Previous years' figures have been regroupedrearranged, wherever necessary lo make them comparable with those of cument year.

Revenue (Annualised) - T in Lacs

24,335
19,692
15,593
11,891

_. .

FY2010-11 FY 2011-12 FY 2012-13 FY 2013-14

FY 2010-11

EBITDA (Annualised) - T in Lacs

001
822 1,00 936

a5
I .71

1,532

1,021
697

FY2011-12 FY 2012-13 FY 2013-14

Profit after Tax (Annualised) - T in Lacs

Earnings per Share (Annualised) - in T

14.26
8.51
6.49

1
FY 2010-11 FY 2011-12 FY 2012-13 FY 2013-14

FY 2010-11 FY 2011-12 FY 2012-13

FY 2013-14
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Corporate Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS Mr. K. K. Gupta, Chairman
Mr. Ajit Kumar
Mr. Deepak Sabharwal
Mr. Gavin Walker
Mrs. Madhu Vij
Mr. P. M. Sharma
Mr. Rajeev Bajaj, Managing Director

SECRETARY Mr. Ashish Srivastava

BANKERS Yes Bank Limited
The Jammu & Kashmir Bank Ltd.
ICICI Bank Limited

REGISTERED & A-26/4, 2nd Floor
CORPORATE OFFICE Mohan Cooperative Industrial Estate
New Delhi - 110044
Tel. : 81 11 40617777
Fax.:91 11 40617799
Email: mail@singerindia.net
Toll free : 1800 103 3474

WORKS Lane No. 4
SIDCO Industrial Estate
Jammu

Lane No. 2
SIDCO Industrial Estate
Phase I, Jammu

Please visit our website www.singerindia.net
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

TOTHEMEMBERS

Your Directors have pleasure In presenting the Thirty Sixth Annual Report and the audited accounts for the year ended

30th June 2014.
FINANCIAL RESULTS

(Rs. in ‘Lacs)

For the year ended For the year ended
30th June 2014 30th June 2013

Sales & Services 2433489 19.691.73
Other Income 164.14 384,67
Total 24,499.03 20.076.40
Profit before finance cost, depreciation & impairmeant and 995.65 1,001.28
iax

Finance cost 8.05 5.24
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 67.46 58.96
Profit before tax 920.14 937.08
) (e 22277 (595.02)
Frofit after tax 697.37 1.532.10
Balance brought forward 1.520.24 253.29
Accumulated Balance 2,217.61 1,785.39
Dividend 161.15 161.15
Dividend Tax 32.22 27.39
Transfer 10 General Reserve 34.87 T6.61
Balance Carried Over 1,989.37 1,520.24

OPERATIONS

Total revenue for the year ended 30th June 2014 increased by 22% to Rs. 244,99 crores from Rs.200.76 crores in the
previous year. While domestic sewing revenue at Rs. 217.96 crores grew by 18% over prior year, the small appliances
business, a relativaly new business segment of your Company, at Rs. 22 37 crores grew by 77%. The small appliances
business accounted for 9.3% of the total business of your Company in the year under review. The Company also started
export of sewing machines during the year which amount to Rs. 3.01 crores (18,000 sewing machines)

Singer India Limited/Annual Report 2013-2014
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Company's business strategy continues to be to
expand small appliances business, while zealously
protecting its core sewing business. Your Company is
strengthening its organization, revamping customer care
and logistics support. It is also increasing its product
portiolio to prepare for future expansion. As a result the
seling and administrative expenses have increased
during the year.

The profit before tax and after tax for the year amounted to
Rs. 9.20 crores (Rs, 9.37 crores in the previous year) and
Rs. 6.97 crores (Rs.15.32 crores in the previous year)
respectively. In the year under review, lower other incomea
al Rs.1.64 crores as against Rs.3.85 crores in the
previous year and tax expense al Rs. 2.23 crores as
against tax benefit of Rs. 5.95 crores in the previous year
impacted profils,

The Company managed to remain almost debt free and
could maintain sufficient liquidity to manage its working
capital for expanding the business.

The Company would work on improving manpower
productivity while simultaneousiy pursuing cost reduction
programs to sustain growth with profitability.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 27th
August, 2014 recommended a dividend of Rs. 1.50 per
equity share of face value of Rs. 10 each for the financial
yearended 30th June, 2014,

The dividend, if approved at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, will be paid to the shareholders as on
the close of business on 1st Movember, 2014, As per
Income Tax Act, 1961, the tax on the dividend will be
borne by the Company.

STATUS ON THE REHAEILIATION SCHEME
APPROVED BY THE BOARD FOR INDUSTRIAL AND
FINANCIAL RECONSTRUCTION (BIFR)

The Hon'ble Board for Industrial and Financial
Reconstruction (BIFR) in the hearing held on 28th
February 2013 discharged your Company from the
purview of SICA/BIFR.

The appeals filed by the Company and some of the
unsecured creditors on the guantum of amount to be
paid to them under the Scheme sanctioned by BIFR are
pending adjudication before the Hon'ble Appellate
Authority for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction
(AAIFR),

MANUFACTURING

Operations of the Company's manufacturing Unit at
Jammu re-started from 3rd July 2013. Production is
prograssing as per the target,

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES & CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As stated earlier, Himec India Limited and Singer India
Trading Limited, the two whally owned subsidiaries of the
Company had filed for voluntary winding up under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The liquidator
appaointed by the shareholders of Himec India Limited
and Singer India Trading Limited has completed all
formalities and filed his Report with the Official
Liquidator. The matter is pending now with the Official
Liquidator's office for filing the winding up petition in the
High Court of Dethi. Therefore, the accounts of these
companies have not been preparad.

DIRECTORS

Mr. Gavin Walker retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible offer for
reappointment.

Mr. P. M. Sharma, Mr. Ajit Kumar, Mr. Despak Sabharwal
and Mrs, Madhu Vij are sought to be appointed as
Independent Directors of the Company under Sections
149 and152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 at the ensuring Annueal General
Meeting.

Tenure of Mr. Rajeev Bajaj. Managing Director of the
Company will come to an end on 30th September, 2014,
The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 27th
August, 2014 has re-appointed Mr. Bajaj as Managing
Director for a further period of three years effective from
istday of Octobar, 2014.

The profie of the Directors to be re-appointed and
appointed have been given in the Corporate Governance
Report.

The Board recommends the above re-appointment/
appaintments. Resolutions seeking your approval on
these items along with the terms and conditions are
included in the Motice convening the Annual General
Meeting.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AMND ANALYSIS
REPORT

Managerment Discussion and Analysis Report as required
under the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchange is
enclosed as Annexura A.

Singer India Limited/Annual Report 2013-2014
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has repaid all depositors along with
interest due as per the directions of the Hon'ble Delhi High
Court except for the unclaimed amount of Rs.2.55 lacs
{Principal) and Rs.1.31 lacs (Interest) to 20 depositors
who have not furnished the criginal deposit receipts or
indemnities. These depositors have nol claimed the
amount despite reminders.

DEPOSITORY SYSTEM

The Company’s shares are avallable for dematerialization
with Mational Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (1) Lid. (CDSL) 89.55% of the
total shareholding of the Company was held in
dematerialized form as on 30th June, 2014,

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

M!s Ray & Ray, Chartered Accountants, statutory auditors
of the Company, hold office until the conclusion of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. Motice under sechion 139
of the Companies Act, 2013 has been received from the
auditors confirming their eligibility to act as Auditors of tha
Company.

The Auditors' in their report 1o the Members have qualified
their opinion on Mote 41 of the financial statement relating
to remuneration paidfprovided in respect of Non-
executive Chairman, which is self explanatory.

DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION,
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

A statement giving details of conservation of energy,
technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and
outgo in accordance with the Companies (Disclosure of
Farticulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules,
1988 is annexed hereto and forms a part of this Report.

EMPLOYEES

Information required under Section 217(2A) of the
Companies Acl, 1956 read with the Companies
(Particulars of Employees) (Amendment) Rules, 1994
forming part of this report Is annexed herato,

The Directors wish to place on record their deep
appreciation for the support and contribution made by all
the employees of the Company.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Industrial relations remained cordial and harmonious
during the year,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, a
separate report on Corporate Governance is enclosed as
a part of this Annual Report, duly certified by Mfs Ray &
Ray, Chartered Accountants, the Auditors of the
Company, confirming the compliance of the conditions of
Corporate Governance. The Company has sel up
Prevention of Sexual Harassment Committeae and has
taken all steps required to frame and implemeant the
Whistleblower Policy and Risk Management Policy as a
part of good governance.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 217{2AA) of the Companles Act,
1956 with respact to Directors' Responsibility Statement,
it is hereby confirmead:

iy  That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanations relating to matenal
depariures,

i} That the Directors had selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as o give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial
year and to the profit or loss of the Company for that
pariod;

That the Directors had taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act
for safeguarding assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

iii}

iv) Thatthe Directors had prepared the annual accounts

on a going concern basis.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors place on record their appreciation for the
assistance and co-operation received from the J & K
Government, SINGER, the Company's valued
customers, members, investing public. employeas,
bankers, suppliers and dealers/distributors,

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Place: New Dealhi
Date: 27" August, 2014

K K.GUPTA
CHAIRMAN
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS' REPORT
DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO, AS REQUIRED UNDER THE
COMPANIES(DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS' REPORT) RULES, 1988,
A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Provided voltage stabilizer to correct power factor and control variation in voltage fluctuation,

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

The required information in the prescribed form 'B' of the Companies Act (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of
Board of Directors) Rules. 1988 is given in Appendix.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The required information in respect of forgign exchange eamings and oulgo is given below:

al Foreign Exchange Eamings on expons (accrual basis) Rs.301.38 Lacs
b} Foreign Exchange Outgo {accrual basis)
- CIF value of imports of raw materials and components MIL
- Finished goods Rs.3,537 16 Lacs
- Expenditure in foreign currency Rs. 242.75Lacs
APPENDIX
FORM B

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECTTOTECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

RESEARCHAND DEVELOPMENT (R & D}

1. SpecificAreasin which R & D carried out by the Company. il
2. Benefils derived asaresult of above R&D M.A
3. Future plan of action M. A
4, Expenditureon R&D
- Capital il
- Recurring Mil
- Total il
Total R & D Expenditure as a percentage of total turmnover il

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

1. Efforts made towards technology absorption and innovation, in brief,
2. Benefits derived as a result of above efforts.
3. Information in case of imported technology (imperted during last five years).
- Technology imports
- Yearof import
- Hastechnology been fully implemented
- If not fully absorbed, area where this has not taken place,
reason therefore and future plans of action. M. A

ZZZ Zo
pEFE F
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Statement of employees pursuant to section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies
(Particulars of Employee) Rules, 1975

(A} Employees drawing Remuneration of not less than Rs.5 lacs per month and employed for full year
- Mot applicable

(B} Employees drawing Remuneration of not less than Rs.5 lacs per month and employed for a part of the year
- Mot applicable

Annexure A
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
Industry Structure and Development

The sewing machines and small appliances industry in India continues to be dominated by the small scale sector with
impaorts of appliances largely from China. However, the sewing industry offers a lot of opportunity to grow particularly in
the export markets. With the Government of India emphasizing on domestic manufacturing, we hope that both these
industries would strengthen in future.

Even though sewing machine is a mature product line, the market conlinues to grow albeit at a very small rate of less than
3% peryear. The Zig Zag and Electronic Sewing machines offer higher potential for growth with increasing awareness of
this product amongst consumers who can afford to pay higher price for the added features.

Small appliances market offers a huge market in India with nsing households and income levels.
Outlook & Opportunities

Considering the current market share of your Company, there is potential to increase its share both in straight stitch and
Zig Zag segments.

The small appliances market, which is a large and growing market, offers tremendous opporunity 1o the Company (o
expand this business with its strong brand equity.

Threats, Risks & Concerns
The Company has identified following Risk areas in the Risk management policy.

1. Low growth of sewing machines market

2. Strong comgpetition in all business segments

3. Sourcing

4. Foreign Exchange

Heads of Departments will be responsible for implementation of the Risk management policy as may be applicable to
their respective areas of functioning, The Board of Directors of the Company and the Audit Committee of Directors will
periodically review the risk management policy of the Company so that the Management controls the risk properly.

Segment-wise Performance
The Company's core business remains sewing machines. Though the Company has re-entered the small appliances

business, segment-wise performance is not being given as small appliances business still accounts for less than 10% of
the total business.

° Singer India Limited/Annual Report 2013-2014
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Internal Control Systems and Adequacy

The Company has adequate systems of internal controls for operations, optimum utilization of resources, effective
monitaring and compliance with all applicable Rules. The intermal control syslem is commensurate with the size and its
nature of operations.

A firm of Chartered Accountants conducts internal audit on quarterly basis. The Audit Committea reviews Audit Reports
submitted by the Internal Auditors. The Committee also meets Company's Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors to
ascertain their views on the adequacy of internal control systems and keep the Board of Directors informed of its major
observations from time (o time.

Financial Performance

Sales and service Income of the Company increased by 23.6% In the financial year ended 30th June 2014 compared 1o
the previous year ended 30th June, 2013. This came 1% from price inflation and the balance from better product
mix/velumes. The Company posted a profit of Rs.6.97 crores after recording all exceptional items during the year ended
A0th June 2014.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment
The Campany has constituted a Committes for prevention of sexual harassment at the workplace.
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Company has been associated with many Social Welfare Organizations through its shops and dealers network
whereby sewing machines are distributed for the benefit of the underprivileged thus affording them the opportunity to
earn their livelihood. The Company will expand this concept by opening skill development centers for womean,

The Company has constituled a CSR committee consisting of three independent Directors assisted by the Managing
Director of the Company fo overses implementation of this initiative.

Whistleblower Policy

The Company has put in place a Whistieblower Policy. The Whistleblower Policy encourages people at large to bring to
the Company’s attention instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected incidents of fraud or violation of the
Company’s Code of Conduet that eould adversely impact the Company’s operations, business performance andfor
reputation,

Human Resources
The Company is committed to implement the highest standards of HR management principles and strict compliance

with regulatory requirements at all times. The Company is making continuous efforts in respect of safely and proper
education of the employees so as to attain the organisational goals effectively and efficiently.

. Singer India Limited/Annual Report 2013-2014




——T ___,..--"'"__""'--...__‘

N ...-.--'""""—# B '."".._, @‘5
Sa . S -
SINGER INDIA LIMITED

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Company's philosophy on code of governance

Your Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages attainment of the highest levels of transparency,
accountability and equity in all facets of its working, and in all its interactions with its stakeholders including shareholders,
employees, lenders and the government. The Company is commitled to attain the highesl standards of Corporate
Governanca,

The Board of Directors balieves that Corporate Governance is the most powerful tool for achieving corporate excellence
and presents a compliance report on the Corporate Governance pursuant to clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and the
Company endeavours to adopt best practices of Corporate Governance.

1. Board of Directors
11 As on 30th June 2014, the strength of your Company's Board is six. The Board has a Chairman (Non-Executive)
and five members comprising of one Managing Director, one Non- Executive Director & three Non-Executive
Independent Directors, All Directors are professionals from diverse fields having valuable experience in
management, legal, administration and finance. Independent Directors do not have any material pecuniary
relationship and have not entered into any transactions with the Company, its promoters and management
which in the judgment of the Board may affect the independence of judgment of the directors.
The details of constitution of the Board and the number of directorships and committee memberships held in
other companies as on 30th June 2014, and their attendance at the Board Meetings held during the period 1si
July, 2013 to 30th June 2014 and at the last Annual General Meeting, are given below.
5l Name of Direcior Category Mo, of Board Mo, of Board Alandancs No. of
Mo Meetings meetings &t tha AGH heid culskde
hald during attended on 12° Novernber, dirgcto-
the year 23 rships*
1. Mr. K. K. Gupta, Mon-Execulive 4] 5 Yes 1
{Chairman)
2 Mr. Rajeev Bajaj Executive [ & Yes 0
{Managing Director)
3 Mr. Gavin Walker Mon-Execulive 4] i No a
4, Mr. Deepak Sabharwal Mon-Execulive ] 6 Yes 0
Independeant
5. Mr. P. N Sharma Mon-Execulive B 4 Yes 3
Independant
6. Mr. Ajit Kumar Mon-Executive & 6 Yes 1
Indepandeant

* Excluding foreign and companies registered under section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956,

Mrs. Madhu Vij was appointed as an additional director w.e.f. 27th August, 2014 and holds appointmeant until the
ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. At the said meeting, we will be seeking approval of the
members for her appointment as a non- executive independent director under Sections 149 and 152 of the
CompaniesAct 2013,

° Singer India Limited/Annual Report 2013-2014
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Mr. K. K. Gupta was appointed as a director on the Board of Zuari Global Limited w.e.f. 30th July, 2014 and as
Director and Chairman of Audit Committes on Indian Furniture Products Limited w.e.f. 31st July, 2014,

1.2 The meetings of the Board of Directors are held at periodic intervals. During the year under review, 6(six) Board
Meetings were held on 7th August, 2013, 27ih August, 2013, 12th November, 2013, 4th February, 2014, 3rd
March, 2014 and 30th April, 2014. The gap between two Board Meetings did not exceed four months.

1.3 As on 30th June, 2014, the Company was required to have an optimum combination with not less than one third
of the Board of Directors comprising of independent directors. The Company had fully complied with the above
requiremeant in the financial year ending 30th June 2014,

2. Code of Conduct

21 The Company is committed to conducting business in accordance with the highest standards of business ethics
and complying with the applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Company had posted its Code of Conduct on
the website of the Company as it believes that a good Corporate Governance structure would not only
encourage valua creation but also provide accountability and control systems commensurate with the risk,

22 All Directors have as on 20th June, 2014, filed the reguisite declarations stating that:

a) The disqualification contemplated under Section 164{2) ofthe CompaniesAct 2013 did not apply to them.
b} The Code of Conduct for prevention of insider trading in its equity shares has been complied with,

23 The Company has framed the Code of Conduct and Ethics for members of the Board and Senior Management
parsonnel of the Company, The Company takes great care that the members of the Board and Senior
Management comply with the clauses of the code of conduct. The said Code of Conduct is also uploaded on the
wabsite of the Company, Declaration towards the confirmation that the code of conduct was followed is
mentioned below. In addition, separate Code of Conduct for dealing in equity shares is also in place.

“I hereby confirm
The Company has ebtained from all members of the Board and Senior Managemen! personnel, affirmation that

they have complied with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for Directors and Semior Management in respect of the
financial yearended 30th June, 2014

Rajeev Bajaj
Managing Director
3. Audit Committee
31 The Audit Committee was constituled in conformity with the requirement of Section 177 of the Companies Act

2013 read with clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee comprises of
three non-executive independent directors namely Mr. P. N. Sharma, Mr. Deepak Sabharwal and Mr. Ajit Kumar.
The Committee is chaired by Mr. P. M. Sharma.

3.2 Mr. Ashish Srivastava, Company Secretary acls as the Secretary to the Committee,

33 The Committee acts as a link between Statutory Auditors and the Board of Directors, The primary objective of
the Audit Committee is to monitor and effectively supervise the Company's financial reporting process with a
view to providing accurate, timely and proper disclosure and the integrity and quality of financial reporting. The
Audit Committes reviews areas as specified under clause 49 af the Listing Agreement read with the provisions
of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013,
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

3.4 Briefterms interalia include:

* Overseeing the Company's' financial reporting, process and disclosure of financial information to ensure
that the financial statements are cormect, sufficient and credible.
. Recommending the appointment and removal of external auditors, fixation of audit fee and approval for

payment of any other services.

Reviewing with managemeant the annual financial statement before submission to the Board.,

Reviewing the adeguacy of internal audit functions.

Discussing with internal auditors any significant finding and follow up on such issues.

Reviewing the finding of any internal investigation by the internal auditers in matters where there Is
suspected fraud or a failura of internal control or regulatory system of a material nature and the reporting
of such matters to the Board.

LI | U

* Discussing with the External Auditor before the Audit commences on the nature and scope of audit, as
well as having post audit discussion o ascertain any area of concern,
. Examining reasons for substantial default in the payment to depositors, shareholders (in case of non-
payment of declared dividends) and creditors, if any.
3.5 The composition and attendance of the members of the Committee is as follows:
Name of Director Number of meetings attended
Mr. P. M. Sharma, Chairman 4
Mr. Deepak Sabharwal 5
Mr. Ajit Kumar =]

During the financial year ended 30th June, 2014 the Audit Commiliee meetings were held five times, i.e. 27Tth
August, 2013, 12th Movember, 2013, 4th February, 2014, 3rd March, 2014 & 30th April, 2014. The Audit
Committee has fully complied with the requirements of clause 49 of the Listing Agreament. The Company has
also complied with the relevant provision of Section 177 of the Companies Acl, 2013 under which the commitlee
should consist of at least three members of which two-third members out of the total members to the committea
should be Independent Directors

4, Nemination and Remuneration Committee (Formerly known as Remuneration Committee)
The Company had a Remuneration Committee comprising of three non-executive independent directors has

been renamed as "Nomination and Remuneration Committee” in accordance with the provisions of Section 178
of the new Companies Act, 2013.

4.1 The compaosition of the Committees is as follows.
Mame of Director Mumber of meetings attended
Mr. Ajit Kumar, Chairman 2
Mr. P. N. Sharma 1
Mr. Deepak Sabharwal 2

' Singer India Limited/Annual Report 2013-2014
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

4.2 The Committee was constituted to review and recommend to the Board, the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and such other matiers as the Board may refer to the Committee from time to time. The
terms of referance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and its role is as prescribed in sub section
{3yand (4) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the listing agreement.

4.3 The Remuneration Committee met on 27th August, 2013 & 30th April, 2014,

4.4 Mo remuneration, other than sitting fee for attending the meetings of Board and Commitlee are being paid to the
MNon-Executive Directors of the Company. However wee.f. 01st day of January, 2012 Mr. K. K. Gupta, Non
Executive Chairman of the Company being paid fixed annual retainership fee and other bonafide
reimbursements/ benefits in terms of approved Members resolutions. Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide letter
dated 31st July, 2014 has rejected the Company's application for approval of payment of fixed retainership fee
and other bonafide reimbursement / benefits to Mr. K. K. Gupta, Non-Executive Director for the period 1st
January, 2013 to 31st December, 2015 which was duly approved by the shareholders on 12th Movember, 2013.
Mr. K. K. Gupta was paid a sum of Rs. 25.61 lacs (including Rs. 7.42 lacs for earlier years) and is holding the
rermnuneration in trust of on behalf of the Company. The Company has made an application for re-consideration
and review on 2 1stAugust, 2014 to Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

5, Remuneration policy

5.1 Subject to the approval of the Board and of the Company in Annual General Meeting and such other approvals
as may be necassary, the YWhole-tima Directors are paid remuneration as per the agreements enterad into
between them and the Company. The remuneration structures of Whole-time Directors comprise of salary &
allowances, contribution to provident fund & perguisites.

5.2 The details of the remuneration paid to Directors during the period from 1st July 2013 to 30th June 2014 are
given balow ;

{In Lacs)

Name and Designation Sialary/ relginarship | Ciher Banafits: | SONiMButian to Tatal

provident and
fee {Hs) (Rs) Ofher funds (Rs)
(Rs)

Mr. K. K. Gupta 11.35* 8.19 - 19.54
[Mon-Exacutive Chairman)
Mr. Rajesv Bajaj 55,356 1.79 169 58,83
{Managing Director)

*includes sitting fee amountof Rs. 1.351acs.

The above figures do not include charge for gratuity and leave encashment as the Company's Liabilities in
respect thereof has been valued by an Actuary and no employee-wise details of same is available.

The appointment of Mr. K. K. Gupla as an advisor of the Company can be terminated by 12 months notice. In
case of Mr. Rajeev Bajaj, Managing Director the services can be terminated by 3 months notice or on payment
of 3manth salary in lieu thereaf,
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5.5

EI‘

6.1

6.2

6.3
6.4

The Non-Executive Directors were paid sitting fee amounting ta Rs. 20,000/- for attending meeting of Board of
Directors and Rs. 5,000/- for all Committee meetings. The details of payment of Sitting Fees for the Peariod from
18t July 2013 to 30th June 2014 are given helow:

Sl No. Name Sitting Fee (Rs.In Lacs)
1 Mr. K. K. Gupta 1.35
2. Mr. Deepak Sabharwal 1.80
3 Mr. P.N. Sharma 1.30
4. t Mr. Ajit Kumar 1.55

Mo Sitting fee was paid to the foreign director,

Equity shares held by the directors

Mr. P. M. Sharma held 10 equity shares of the Company as on 30th June, 20147 equity shares are held by wife
of the Managing Director as first holder.No Directors other than the above directors held any shares in the
Company as on 30th June, 2014,

The Company does not have any stock oplion scheme for its employees,

Stakeholders Relationship and Share Transfer Committee (formerly Shareholdersf/investors
Grievance and Share Transfer Committee)

The Shareholders/investors Grievance and Share Transfer Committee has been renamed as “Stakeholders
Relationship and Share Transfer Committes”

The camposition of the Committee and atltendance is as follows:

Mame of Director MNumber of meetings attended
Mr. Deepak Sabharwal, Chaimman T
Mr. K. K. Gupta 7
Mr.P. N. Sharma 5

During the financial year ended 30th June 2014, Committee meetings were held seven imes i.e. on 31st July,
2013, 11th September, 2013, Tth Movember, 2013, 20th December, 2013, 24th January, 2014, 27th March,
2014 & 30th April, 2014, The Company received 7 (seven) complaints from the Shareholders and all were
resolved to the satisfaction of the Shareholders.

Mr. Ashish Srivastava, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

The Company attends to the Shareholders grievances | correspondence expeditiously and normally reply is
sant within a period of 10 days of receipt, except in cases of disputes or legal impediments. The designated e-
mail ID as per clause 47(f) of the Listing Agreement for grievance redressal! compliance officer for registering
complaintby investors is secretariali@singerindia.net.
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6.5 During the financial year ended 30th June 2014, Company received 190 shares for transfer from 12 parties,
which were approved. There were no transfers pending as on 30th June 2014,

7. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committes)

In accordance to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with all other applicable Rules,
the "Corporate Social Responsibility Committee” has been constituted by the Board on 30th April, 2014,

The Commitlee comprises of Mr. P, N. Sharma as the Chairman of the Commitiee and Mr. Deepak Sabharwal
and Mr. Rajeev Bajaj as Members to the Committee, majority of them being the Independant Directors.

8. Certificate from CEO& CFO

Certificate from Mr. Rajeev Bajaj, Managing Director and Mr, S, C. Magpal, Contraller& GM-Accounts of the
Company in terms of clause 49V of the Listing Agreement with the stock exchange for the financial year ended
30th June, 2014 was placed before the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 27th August,

2014,
9. General Body Meetings
8.1 Annual General Meeting
The last three Annual General Meelings of the Company were held as under: -
Year Date Time Venue MNo. of special

resolution passed

2013 | 12th Novamber, 2013| 4.00p.m. | Sn Sathya Sai Intamational
Centre, Institutional Area, 3
Pragati Vihar, Lodhi Raod

New Delhi-110003

2012 | 28th October, 2012 4.00p.m, | Sn Sathya Sai International
Centre, Institutional Area,
Pragati Vihar, Lodhi Raod
New Delhi-110003

2011 | 5th October, 2011 4.00p.m. | Sri Sathya Sai Intermnational
Centra, Institutional Area, 2
Pragati \ihar, Lodhi Raod
New Delhi-110003

8.2 Postal ballot
During the financial year ended 30th June, 2014, no resolution was passed through posial ballot.

10. Disclosures

10.1 Risk assessment and its minimization procedures have been laid down by the Company and adopted by the
Board in one of its meeting and are reviewed on periodical basis, There is a structure in place of identify and
mitigating various identifiable risks faced by the Company from time to time. At the Meetings of the Board, these
risks are reviewed and new risks are identified, After assessment, controls are put in place with specific
responsibility of the concermad officer of the Company,

10.2 Mo money was raised by the Company during the financial year ended 30th June 2014,

10.3  Asummary of transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business is periodically placed befora
the Audit Committee Meetings.
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10.4 Thare was no matenal individual transaction during the financial year ended 30th June 2014, with the related
parties which were not in the ordinary course of business,

10.5 Allmaterial transactions during the financial year ended 30th June 2014, either with the related parties or others
was on commercial consideration.

10.6 There were no materially significant transactions during the financial year ended 30th June 2014 with the
related parties such as the promoters, directors, key manageral personnel or refatives that could have
potential conflict with the interest of the Company.

10.7 The mandatory disclosures of transactions with the related parties in compliances with the Accounting
Standard AS - 18 is a part of this annual Report and disclosed in Notes to the Accounts in Note 46,

10.8 In preparing the Annual Accounts in respect of the financial year ended 30th June 2014 no accounting
treatment was different from that prescribed.

10.9 All the Directors and other identified persons have observed and complied with the requiremants of Code of
Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in Equity Shares of the Company in accordance with Securities &
Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading ) Regulation, 1992,

1. Compliance by the Company

There has been no instance of non-compliance by the Company on any matter refated to capital markets during
the last three years; hence no penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock
Exchange, SEEI or other statutary authority on any matter related to capital markels, during the |ast three
years.

12. Disclosure of accounting treatment

The financial statements have been prepared to comply with the prescribed Accounting Standards and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Acl”), The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention on acerual basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the
Company and are consistent with those used in the previous year,

13. Means of communication

+  Quarterly/ Half Yearly Disclosures: Quarterly and half yearly reports are not sent separately to the
individual members. The Quarerly/Half Yearly Results are published in leading daily newspapers viz,
“Indian Express"/ “Hindustan Times" in English and in "Jansatta”/ “*Hindustan” in Hindi

+« Annual Report: Annual Report containing inter-alia, Notice of Annual General Meeting, Directors’ Report,
Auditors' Report, Audited Annual Accounts and other important information is circulated to Members and
others entitled thereto

14. Disclosure regarding Directors seeking appointment / reappointment as required under clause 49 (IV)
{G) of the Listing Agreement entered into with Stock Exchanges.

i} Mr. Gavin Walker (DIN: 01216863)

Mr. Gavin Walker (45) has a finance background and is President and CEO of Singer Asia Limited. Prior to
Joining Singer Asia Limited, Mr. Walker served as Managing Director and Chief Executive of private
and public Companies in the United Kingdom and in South Africa. Earlier, he had served asChief
Executive Officer of Profurn Ltd, a South African Public Company that was a multi-brand retailer of
glectrical appliances and fumiture with operations in 16 African Countries and Australia.
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15.

16.

16.1

i) Mr.Deepak Sabharwal (DIN: 00173116)

Mr. Deepak Sabharwal (47) is an Advocate & Solicitor having expertise in  Corporate Laws, Income
Tax and other laws including Mergers and Acquisitions.

i)

iv)

v)

vi)

Mr. Ajit Kumar (DIN: 00106597)

Mr. Ajit Kumar (72) is a BA. MA in English and ranked first position in the Punjab University He was in
Indian Administrative Services (|1AS)and has held in the past the positions of Defence Secretary, Industry
Secretary, Chairman of FIPB and Finance Secretary to the Government of India. He has over 39 years of
high level administrative experience.

Paresh Math Sharma (DIN: 00023625)

Mr. P. N. Sharma (B5) is a qualified FCS, FCA and CA from top Managemeant Programme at Henly
Business School, U K. Heis also on the Board of various Companies,

Mrs. Madhu Vij (DIN: 00025008)

Mrs. Vi) (58) is a Professor in Faculty of Managament Studies, University of Delhi and has in her cradit
specialization in the field of Internaticnal Financial Management, Banking, Corporate Finance, Financial
Accounting and Risk Management.

She also authored various articles and books on Financial and Management Accounting etc., speaker at
various forums and successfully handied various administrative assignments.

Mr. Rajeev Bajaj (DIN: 02284467)
Mr. Rajeev Bajaj (54)is a Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India as well as Fellow

member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India with over 30 years of experience in the field of
Finance, Accounts, Taxation, and Legal & Secretarial.

Management Discussion and Analysis.

The Management Discussions and Analysis Report is a part of the annual report and is attached herewith as
“Annexure A

General shareholder information

Annual General Meeting

Date 1 12thday of November, 2014

Time J:00PM,

Venue : SriSathya Sailnternational Centre,

Pragati \ihar, Bhisham Pitamah Marg,
Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003.
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16.2,

16.3

16.4

Financial calendar

The financial year of the Company for the current year is of the twelve months period from 1st July, 2013 to 30th
June, 2014,

For the financial year ended 30th June 2014 from 1st July, 2013 to 30th June, 2014, results were announced
on;

First Quarter ; 12th November, 2013
Half yearly : 4th February, 2014
Third Quarter ! 30th April, 2014
Fourth Quarter & Audited Results : 27th August, 2014

(1stJuly, 2013 t0 30th June, 2014)

For the year ended 30th June 2015, results will be announced on;

First Quarter: Within 45 days from the close of quarter ending September, 2014,

Half yearly: Within 45 days from the close of quarter ending December, 2014,

Third Quarter: Within 45 days from the close of quarter March, 2015.

Fourth Quarter & Audited Annual Results (2014-158): Within 60 days from the close of quarter! year ending
June, 2015,

Dividend & Book closure date

The Board of Directors, at their meeting held on 27th August, 2014 recommended a dividend of Rs. 1.50 per
equity share of face value of Rs. 10 each for the financial year ended 30th June, 2014. Dividend if approved by
the Members, will be paid on or after 18th November, 2014. The register of members and share transfer register
of the Company will remain closed from 1st day of Novemnber, 2014 to 12th November, 2014 (both days
inclusive).

Listing on Stock Exchanges and Stock Code

Name of the stock exchange Stock code

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited b06T28
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street , Mumbai = 400001

The International Security Identification Number (ISIN) of Singer India Limited on both NSDL and CDSL is
INEG3BAD1027

The Company confirms that it has paid annual listing fee to Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai for the
year 2014-2015,

The Status of dividend remaining unclaimed is given hereunder;

Unclaimed Status Whether it can be Can be claimed Action to be laken
Dividend claimed from
For the Financial Lying in Unpaid Yes MCS Litd. Letter on Plain
year Dividend Account {Registrars and Paper
2012-13 Transfer Agent)

Company has hosted on its website the details of the unclaimed dividend for the Financial Year 2012-13.
Shareholders who have not encashed their dividend warrants relating to the financial year 2012-13 are
requested lo contact M/s MCS Limited (Registrars and Transfer Agent),
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16.5

16.6

16.7

Market price data

Monthly high/low guotations of shares traded of each month at Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai
during the financial year ended 30th June, 2014 are as follows;

Month High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Moanth High (Rs.) Low (Rs.}
July 2013 107.95 7770 January 2014 103.00 B4.15
August 2013 111.85 78.00 February 2014 97.00 70.25
September 2013 110.00 80.15 March 2014 B1.90 69.45
Qctober 2013 116.35 86.10 April 2014 89.00 76.15
MNovember 2013 104.75 82.25 May 2014 85.45 70.50
December 2013 105.90 ar.20 June 2014 106.00 83.10

Performance of Company's equity shares in comparison to BSE Sensex is given below:
SIL vwis SENSEX

1.40

/,#
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Registrar and Transfer Agent

M/s MCS Limited, New Delhi are the registrar and share transfer agents of the Company for handling both
electronic and physical shares. Shareholders are requested o contact the transfer agents for all share related
work. The address of share transfer agents is given below:

M/s MCS Limited

F — 65, First Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - |

New Dalli - 110020

Phone: 011 -41406149 52, Fax: 011 —41709881, Email: admin@mcsdel.com
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16.8

16.9

Share Transfer System

The shares of the company are traded in the compulsory demalterialized mode for all investors. The shares sent
for transfer in physical form are registered within 10 days (if in order and complete in all respects) and the share
certificates are immediately relurmed to the shareholders. In respect of requests received for dematerialization
of shares, the same are confirmed to the respective depositories, viz. Natlonal Securities Depository Limited
(MSDL)and Central Depository Services (India) Limited {CDSL) within the stipulated time,

In compliance of the Listing Guidelines, every six months, practicing Company Secretary audits the system of
transfers and a cerfificate to that effect is issued, Also, in compliance with the SEB| guidelines, a quarierly
secretarial audit is being conducted by a practicing Company Secretary and the secrefarial audit report is
issued which, in tum, is submitted to the stock exchange. The said secretarial audit report is also placed before

the Board from time o time.

Distribution of shareholding as on 30th June 2014

Shares Sharsholders Mo, of sharas
S. No Range % of % of
Mumber Total Mumkber Total
1 1 500 9745 65,66 396144 3.69
2 501 1000 205 2.01 161141 1.50
e 1001 2000 102 1.00 155604 1.45
4 2001 3000 42 0.41 108447 0.99
5 3001 4000 26 0.25 85081 0.88
6 4001 5000 18 D.18 BTB55 0.82
7 5001 10000 18 0.19 134290 1.25
a 10001 50000 17 0.7 301172 2.80
9 50001 100000 8 0.08 584719 5.44
10 100001 And above 5 0.05 8720882 81.18
TOTAL 10187 100.00 10743135 100.00
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16.10

17.

Broad shareholding pattern - As on 30" June 2014

Category Mao. of shares % age of
held shareholding
Singer (India) B. V., The MNetherlands (Fromaoters) BOST3s 75.00
Banks, Financial Institutions & Insurance Companies 121542 1.13
NRIs 15174 0.14
Indian Public 2549063 2373
TOTAL 10743135 100.00

Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

99 55% of the equity shares have been dematerialized up to 30th June, 2014, The shares of the Company can
be dematerialized by the shareholders either with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited.
The Equity shares of the Company are listed with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai.

Management Responsibility Statement

The Directors’ Responsibility Statement in conformity with the requirement of the Companies, Act 1956 has
been included in the Director's Repaort to the Shareholders, A Management Discussion and Analysis Report
have been annexed to the Direclor's Report,

The Financial Accounts are in full conformity with the requirement of the Companies, Act 1956. These accounts
reflect fairly the form and substance of transactions and present a true & fair view of the company's financial
condition and the results of its operation.

The Company has proper and adequate systems of internal controls in order to ensure that all assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that all transactions are authorized recorded
and reported comectly.

Your Company has institutionalized a proper system to monitor internal control compliances for all important
financial internal control processes.

The Company has a system of Internal Control which is reviewed, evaluated and updated on an ongoing basis,
The Company has an Internal Audit system, which is commensurate with the size and nature of the business,
Regular internal audits and checks are carried out to ensure that the responsibilities are executed effectively
and that adequate systems are in place, The Internal Auditor has conducted the percdic audit of system and
procedures to provide reasonable assurance that the aclivities are conducted in a manner not prejudicial to the
interest of the Company.
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18. Compliance Certificate of the Auditors.

The Company has obtained a certificate from the Statutory Auditors regarding compliance of conditions of
Corporate Govemance as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and the same is annaxed.

All material requirements with respect to Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Agreement have
been complied with,

19. Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact
onequity.

Mil
20. Location of Plants

1.LaneMNo. 4, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Jammu
2. LaneNo, 2, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Phase |l, Jammu

2. Address for Correspondence:

Singer India Limited

A26/4, 2nd Floor,

Mohan Cooperative Industrial Estate, Mew Delhi-110044,
Email: mail@singerindia.net'secretarial@singerindia.net

On behalf of the Board of Directors

K. K. Gupta Rajeev Bajaj
Chairman Managing Director

Ashish Srivastava
Company Secralary
MNew Delhi, 27" August, 2014
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CEOQ/CFO CERTIFICATION

The Board of Dwectors
Singer India Limited

W, the undersigned, in our respective capacities 25 Managing Director and Contraller & GM-Accounts of Singer India Limited ("The Comgany”), to the best
af our knowledge and belkef certify that:

{a) 'We have raviewad tha financial statermnents and the cash fow statemant for the financial year ended 30th June, 2014 and based on our knowledge
and belief, we state that;

iy  these slatements do not contain any materially uniree statement or omil any material fact or contain any staterment that might be misleading.

iy Ureese slaternents iogather prasent a tnee and fasr view ol the company’s affairs and are in complanos with the axisting Bocounting standards,
applicable laws and regulations.

() Welurther stales that to e best of our knowledge and bebel there ang no ransactions entesed by the Company during the year, which
are fraudutent, (llegal or vollative of the company's code of conduet,

{c} 'We hereby declare thal all the members of Board of Directors and Managemant Commiltee have confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct as
adopted by the company,

|d) 'Wa are responsible for establishing and maintsining snternal controls and evaluating the sffectvenass of the same over the financial reporting of the
Company and kave disciosed 1o the Auditors 2nd the Audd Committes, deficiencias in the desion or operations of inamal controks, il any. al which we
are awarse arvd the steps wa have taken or propose 1o lake reclily these deficencies.

{e) Wehove indicaled, based onour most recent evaluation, whetever applicable, to the Auditors and Audit Commities:
(I} ssgnificant changes, if any, in the inlemal control our financial reporing during the year;

(i} significani changes, i any, in the accounting policies made during the year and that the same has baen disclosad in the notes to the financial
statements; and

(i}  instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the managemeant or an employes having
significant role In the company's iIntemal control syatem over financial reporting.

Mew Crafhi {Rajeev Bajaj) {Subhash C. Magpal)
2TthAugust, 2014 Managing Director Contraller & GM-Accounia

Auditors’ Certificate on compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance under clause 49 of the listing
agreements

Te

This Mambessal
Singerindia Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Singer India Limited for the year ended on 30th June, 2014 as stipulated In
ciausze 49 of the Listing Agreemant of the said Company with Siock Exchanges

The compliance of condiions of Corporals Governance is the responsllity of the Massgement. Our responsibility &5 limited 1o the examination of the
procedures and implamentation thereod. adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. 1 is neither
an audit nor an expression of apinlon on the Finencial Statements of the Comaany

I iour opinson and to the best of our information and acoording to the explanations given to us and based on the representations made by the Directors and
thes Managermont we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as sbpulated in the above-mentioned Listing
Agresment.

W further state that such compliance ts neither an essurance as to the fulure viabildy of the Campany nor the efficency or effectivenass with which the
Management has conducied the altairs of the Company

For RAY & RAY
Chartered Accounfants
Ferm Reglstration no, 301072E

{A. K, Sharma)
Partner
Mambership Mo, B0085

My Dalhi
27" Auguist, 2014
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Board of Directors.

Singer ndia Lirmibes

A-26i4, Mohan Cooperatiee Industnal Estate
New Dedhi — 110044

Wi have examined the registers, records and documents of Singer Indis
Limited (“The Company”) far the perod commencing from 1stJuly 2013 to
30th June, 2014 for compliancas of provisions of

1.

The Companias Act, 1856(the Act), Companses A, 2013 1o
the extent applicable and the Rules made there under,

The Depositories Acl 1998 and the Regulaiions and Bye-
lavws framed Ihereunder;

The followeng Regulatons and Gusdelines prescribed under (he
Sacuriies and Exchange Board of India Acl. 19092(5SEBI Act);

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India{ Substantial Acquisiticn
of Sharas and Taksovers) Regulations. 19457 (affective hill 22nd
Oetobaer, 2011) and Securiies Exchange Board of India
{Subslantiad Acquesition of Sharas and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011 (effective fram 23rd Dotober, 2011)

(b} Securities and Exchange Board of india (Prohibition of Insider
Trading ) Regulations 1952

The Secunties Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA") and
thia Rubes made thereundar, and

The Ligling Agreements entened o wilh Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited{BSE)

Based on our examination and verification of the ragisters, records and
documents produced to us and eccording to the Information and
explanation given o us by the Company-

We report thal the company has, i our opinian, complied with (he
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thersunder and with the
Memaorandum and Arlicles of Association of the Company, with regard bo;

f2)

i)
=}

)

{e)
if

1]
{h)
1
L1

{k}

maintenance of vamous statutory registers and  doouments
and making necessary antries thorein;

closure of Register of Members;

forms, returns, documents and reschulions required o be
filed w¥ih tha Regestrar of Companies and Cantral Government;
sefvice of documents by the Company on its Members and
the Registrar of Companies;

notice of Meetings of the Board and Commitiee therecf;

minutes of the meetings of the Board and Commitlges (herec!
inchuding passing of resolutions by Circulation;

nodice convening the 35th  Arnual General Meeting held on
12th Mo, 2013,

minutes of genaral meatings;

approvals ol the Members, the Board of Direclors, the
Commitiees of DMrectors and government authorities,
wherever required sublect to poant (k) below;

constitution of the Board of Directors /| Commitiea(s) of
Directors and appointment, fretirerment and re-appainiment of
Directors including the Managing Director,

payment of remuneration to the Direciors including the Managing
Director, Ministry of Corporale Alairs vide letter dated 318t duly,
2014 has rejected the Company's application for approval of
paymenl of fixed relatnership fee and olther bonefide
reimbursamant | benafils o Mr. K. K. Gupta, Non-Execufive
Director for the period 1st January, 2013 to 31st December, 2015

L

which was. duly approved by the shaseholders on 12th November,
2013, The Company has made an application for re-consideration
and review on 21stAwgust, 2014 to Ministry of Corporate Affairs.
appointment and remuneration of Statubary Auditars:

{m) transfer and tranemission of the company's shares;

{n) form of Balance Sheet as prescribed under Part | of Schadule Wl o
the Companies Act 1958 and requirementis as to Profit & Loss
Account s per Part It of the sald Schedule;

(o) condracts, common seal, regisiared office and publication of nama
ofthe comgpany; and

{p)  generally, all othwer applicable provisions of the Acl and Rules made
theraunder,

‘W further reporf that:

{a)  the Dieclors have compliod with the requirements as to
disclosure of inferests and concemms in contracis and
arrangements, shamhulmngs and directorships In other
companies and interest in other entities;

{b)  the Dweclors have complied with the disclosure requirements in
respect of thair egibility of appointment, thair being indepandan
and complance with the Code of Conduct of the Company;

ied  the Company has oblained all necessary ppprovals under the
vanious provisions of the Act subject bo point (k) above;

(d) theve was no prosecution Initiated against or show cause

mobice receved by the Company and no fnes of penalties
were |mposed on the Company during the year under
review under the Companies Acl, SEB|I Act, SCRA,
Depositones Act, Listing Agreement and Rules, Regulations
and Guidelines framed under these Acls against the
Company, Its Dectors and Officars.

W further rapor thal the Company has complied with the provisions of
the Deposiomnes Act, 1996 and the Bye-laws framed under that Act by the
depositores with regard 1o dematerialisation | remalenallzaben of
securities and reconciliabon of racords of dematenabsed securibes isswed
try the Company,

W further report that:

{a]

[L:1]

=]

the Company has complied with lhe requiremenls under
the Lisling Agreement entered Inta with the Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited (BSE);

the Company has complied with the Securities and
Exchange Board of indiaiSubstantial Acquistion of Sharos
and Takeowvers) Regulations, 1887 effective till 22nd
October, 2011} and Securities Exchange Board of India
{Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulationa, 20f1(eflfective from 23rd October, 2011)
inclading tha provisions with regard o disciosure and
malntenance of records required under the Regulations;

tha Campany has complied with the provisions of Securilies
and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulalions, 1982 including the provisions with
regard o disclosures and maintenance ol rmcords requised
under the Regulations.

Place : Mew Delhi
Date: 22nd August, 2014

For H.O. Gulati & Co.
Company Secretarles

H.O. Gulati
FCS CP No. 9337
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TOTHE MEMBERS OF SINGER INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
Singer India Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at June 30, 2014, the Statement of Profitand
Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significanl accounting policies and other
explanatory information,

Management's Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, firancial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards
referred to in sub-section {3C) of section 211 of the Companies
Act, 1956 (the "Act’) read with General Circular 15/2013 dated
13th September 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in
respact of Section 133 of the Companles Act, 2013, This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstaternent, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility s to express an opinicn on these financial
statements based on our audil. We conducted our audil In
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the acdil to obiain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to oblain auwdit
evidence sbout the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statemenis. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessmeant of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o fraud
ar error, I making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal contral relevant 1o the Company's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectivensss of the entity’s internal contral, An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presantation of the inancial statements,

Wea believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our audit
opinion,

Basis of Qualified Opinion
Attention is drawn (o the Nate 41 regarding

Ministry of Comporate Affairs vide lefter dated 3181 July, 2074
has rgjected the Company's applicetion for approval of
paymert of fxed refaner-ship fee and other bonafide
reimbursement / benefits o Mr. K. K. Gupta, Non-Executive
Director for the periad 18t January, 2013 to 3151 December,
2015 which was duly approved by the shareholders on 12th
November, 2013, Mr. K. K.Gupta was paid 8 sum of Rls. 25.61
lacs fincluding Rs. 7.42 lacs for earlier years) off 30.06.2074
and Iz holding the remunaration in trust of on bohalf of the
Company. The Company has made an application for re-
consideration and review on 215 August, 2074 1o Ministry of
Comporaie Affairs in this regard. The effect of the above
ohservationsis presently unascertainable.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given fo us excapt for the effect of the
matters described n the basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph,
the financial stafemeants give the informalion required by the
Act read with General Circular 082014 dated 4.4, 2074 issued
by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in Hhe manner so required and
give a frue and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accapted in India:

fa) in the case of the Balance Sheest, of the state of
affairs of the Company as al June 30, 2014 and;

) in the case of the Slatement of Profif and Loss, of the
profit for the year ended on that date; and

fg) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash
flows for the year ended on that dale.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order,
2003 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government of
India in tarms of sub-section (44) of saction 227 of the Act,
we give in the Annexure a stalement on the matters
specified in paragraph 4 and 5of the Order,

2. Asrequired by section 227(3) of the Act, we repart that:

a. we have obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necassary for the purpose of our audit;

in our apinion proper books of account a3 required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as appears from
our examination of those books;

¢ [haBalance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreemant
with the books of account;

d. inour opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and
Loss and Cash Flow Statement comply with the
Accounting Standards referred to In subsection (3C) of
section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 read with General
Circular 15/2013 dated 13th September 2013 of the

Singer India Limited/Annual Report 2013-2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Ministry of Company Affairs in respect of Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013;

2. on the basis of written represantations recelved fram the
directors as on June 30, 2014, and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on June 30, 2014 from being appointed as a director in
terms of clause(q) of Sub-Section(1) of Section 274 of the
Companles Act, 1956 / Section 164(2) of the Companies
Act, 2013,

f. sinca the Central Governmeani has not issued any
notification &5 to the rate at which the cess is o be paid
under section 4414 of the Companies Act, 1956 nor has it
issued any Rules under the said section, prescribing the
mannar in which such cess is to be paid, no cess is due
and payable by the Company,

For RAY & RAY
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Mumber 301072 E

{AK. Sharma)
Partrer
Membership Number 80085

Place: New Dalhi
Date: 27" August, 2014

Annexure To Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to Paragraph 1 under the heading of "Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report
of even date

1. a)
b}
c)
2. 8)
b}

Tha Company has generally maintained
proper records showing  particulars, including
quantilative details and situation of fixed assels
fying at its Jammu factory and other locations

The fixed assets were physically verified during the
year by the management in accordance with a
programme of wverification which, in our opinion,
provides for physical verification of major fided
assels al reasonable intervals having regard 1o the
size of the Company and the nature of its assats. The
discrepancies noticed on such werification which
were not material have been properly dealt with in
the books of account.

The fixed assets disposed off during the yvear, in our
opinlon, do not constitute a substantial parl of the
fixed assets of the Company and such disposal has,
in our opinion, nol affected the going concern status
of the Company.

The inventory (excluding stock in transit) has been
physically venfied by the management during the
vear, Stock in transit as at 30th June, 2014 have
bean verified with reference to subsaquent receipl of
goods ar other ralevant documents. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification is reasonable,

In our apinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the procedures of physical
verification of inventories followed by the
Management were reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the Company and the nature of
its business,

c)

a)

b}

a)

B)

In our opinion and zccording to the information and
explanations given to wus, the Company is
maintaining proper records of its inventories. The
discrepancies noticed during the physical
verification of inventories as compared o book
recards were not material and have been properly
dealt with in books of account.

Accaording to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
sacured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other
parties listed in the register maintained wunder
Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.
Accordingly, the provisions of sub-clause (a), (b)), (c)
and (d) of paragraph 4 (i} of the Order are not
applicable to the Company,

According o the information and explanations given
tous, the Company has not taken any ioans, securad
or unsecurad, from companias, firms or olher paries
listed in the register maintained under Section 301 of
the Companies Act, 1956, Accordingly, the
provisions of sub-clause (e}, (f)and (g) of paragraph
4 (iii}of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our apinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us and having regard to the
expianation that for some items purchased for which
comparable alternative quotations are not avallable
because of the nature ! guality of such items and
delivery schedules and for sale of cerain
goods/services which are for the buyers specialized
requirements for which suitable alternative sources
are not available for comparable guotations, there
are generally adequate infermal control System
commensurate with the size of the company and
nature of ifs business with regard to purchase of
inventory, fixed asseis and sale of goods and
services except for accounts of Trade Payabies
which are under process of review/reconciliation,
Subject 1o the abovea, during the course of aur audil,
we have neither come across nor have we been
informed of any continuing failure to correct major
weakness inintarnal controd systam.

On the basis of our examination of the books of
account and according fo the information and
explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that
the particulars of contracts or arrangements that
need o be entered into the register maintained
under Saction 301 of the Act have been so entered.

In our opinion and according to the information and
expianations given to us, the transaction made In
pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in
the register maintained under secton 301 of
Companies Act, 1956 do not excead the value of Rs,
5 lacs in respect of any party in any one financial
year, Accordingly, the provisions of sub clause (b) of
paragraph 4 (v) of the Ordear are not applicable to the
Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 584, 58AA and other relevant provisions of
the Act and the rules framed there under, to the extent applicable, had been complied with by the Company, The Hon'ble High
Court of Delhi vide Order dated 19.01.2011 in refation to the Appeal filed against the Order of the Hon'ble Company law Board
dated 251 June, 2009 on the composite schame for repayment of deposits under section 584 and 5844 of the Companies
Act, 1956 directing the Company to pay interest to all depositors at the contracted rate up to the date of maturity and thereafter
(@ 5% fill the date of final installment before 31st March, 2011, The Company has re-paid all unpaid interest on fixed deposits
except 20 depositors whose principal and Interest accrued thereon of Rs. 3.86 lacs Is pending settlement due o non-
submizsion of the original Fixed Deposit Recaipts indemnities.

(O the basis of the intermal audit reports reviewed by us, we are of the opinion that, the coverage of internal audit carried ouf by
a firm of Chartered Accountants is commensurate with the size of the Company and nature ofits business.

The Central Governmeni has not prescribed maintenance of cost recards under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of section 209 of
the Companies Act, 1956 for the products of the Company. Accardingly, the provisions of paragraph 4 (viii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

a) The Company |s generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undispuled stalulory dues including
provident fund, investor education and protection fund, employees’ stale insurance, income tax, value added tax! sales
tax, wealth {ax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it. Though
there have been instances of non deduction of tax at source.

Further, since the Central Government has till date net prescribed the amount of cess payable under Saction 44 1Aof the
Companies Act, 1956, we are not in a position to comment upon the regularnity or otherwise of the Company in depositing
the same.

b} Accarding lo information and explanations given to us, there are no other undisputed amount payable in respact of
provident fund, investor education & protection fund, income tax, employess slate insurance, wealth tax, value added
tax/ sales tax, custom duty, service tax, excise duty, cess and other statutory dues which were cutstanding at the period
end for penod of more than six months from the date they become pavable.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of wealth tax, service tax, custom duty and
cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute other than disputed income tax, value added tax/sales ax
and excise duty as indicated belbow:

Name of Mature Year Farum before which Amount
Statute of Dues dispute pending {Rs. in lacs)
alue Added Sales Tax Z008-09 First Appellate Authority, Delhi 14,11
Tax [ Sales Tax
of various States
Salas Tax 2005-08 VAT Tribunal, Delhi 1.82
Sales Tax 1982-93, 2002-03, | First Appeilate Authority, Wast Bangal 8,94
2007-08
Sales Tax 1995-96 Appellate Tribunal, Wast Bengal 14.79
Salas Tax 2009-10 First Appeilate Authority, Weast Bengal 1.00
Sales Tax 2010-11 First Appellate Authority, West Bengal 13.04
Sales Tax 1992-93,1996-97, First Appellate Authority, Maharashtra 39.62
2004-05
Sales Tax 2002-03 First Appellate Autharity, Goa 0.13
Sales Tax 2000-01 First Appellate Authority, Cochin 0,43
Sales Tax 5503-0;. 2004-05,|  First Appellate Authority, Cochin 48.21
11-1
Total 143.09
Central Exclse Act Excize Duty 2005-06 Appellate Authority, Delhi 60.38
Total 60,38
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

10.

The Company has no accumulated losses as at 30th June, 2014 and it has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year
ended on that date or in the immediately preceding financial year,

11. Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
dues to financial instituticns and banks. Thera are no debenlures hotders.

12. The Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledne of shares, debentures and other
securities. Accordingly, paragraph 4 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

13.  Inouropinicn, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi f mutual bepafit fund / society. Accordingly, paragraph 4 (xili) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

14. The Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments. Accordingly, the provisions
of paragraph 4(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

15, According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by othars
from banks or financial institutions, Accardingly, paragraph 4 {xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

16. The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 4 {xvi) of the
Cirder are not applicable to the Company.

17. According fo the information and explanations given (o us and an an overall examination of the Balance Sheet of the Company,
we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term investments.

18, According to the information and explanations given lo us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to
parties and companies! firms covered in the Register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Adt, 1856, Accordingly,
the provisions of clause (ki) of paragraph 4 of the aforesaid order are not applicable to the Company,

19. The Company has notissued debantures during the year under audit. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xix) of paragraph 4
of the aforesald Order are not applicabla to the Company.

20. The Company has not raised any money by public issues during the period. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 4{xx) of the
Crder are not applicable to the Company.

21. During the course of our examination of the books of account camried out in accordance with Genarally Accepted Auditing
Practices, we have nelther come across any instance of fraud on or by the Company nor have we been informed of any such
case by the Managemeant except for fraud on the Company through misappropriation of current assets {net) aggregating to Rs,
18.50 lacs by employees wenz noticad & reported which have been adjusted f provided for

For Ray & Ray

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration no. 301072 E

(A, K. Sharma)

Partner

Membership No. 080085

Piace: New Dalhi
Date : 277 August, 2014
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30™ JUNE, 2014

Mote
(Rupees)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share Capital 3 1074.31
Resarvas and Surplus 4 31438
Mon - Current Liabilities
QOther Long-Term Liabiles 5 67.38
Long-Term Provisions G 99.25
Current Liabilities
Short - Term Borrowings T 16.21
Trade Payabies ;| 1,643.63
Oither Current Liabilities g 1,304.01
Short-Term Provisions 10 47034
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Fized Assats gh
Tangile Assets 1,146.97
Intangibde Assels 3.42
Mon-Currant Invesimens 12 .
Dafarred Tax Assets (Net) 13 B30
Lang-Term Loars and Advances 14 48131
Cither Non-Currant Assets 15 12,82
Current Assels
Inventores 16 2 46367
Trade Receivables 17 1,878.59
Cash and Bank Balances 18 1,166.48
Short-Term Loans and Advances 18 29311
Other Current Asseds 20 20,44
Signelicant Accounting Policies & 1 1o 54
Mates o the Accounts
This Is tha Balance Sheal referred o in our repor of even date
for Ray & Ray
Chartered Accountanis
A, K. Sharma
Partner Ashish Srivastava Subhash Chand Magpail
Membership no. 80085 Company Secretary Controfier and GM-Actounts

Firm's Registration Mumber 301072E
MNew Delhl, 27 August, 2014

(Aumceunt in "Lacs)

As at 30th June

2014
[Rupees)

4,218.12

166.73

393418

2013
{Rupeas)

1,074.31
265492
372923

B4 38
T0.18
154,54

1,107.87
1.110.7

96062
3ATE.20

B,319.04

7 06287

1,150.30

1,335.25

5,833.30

1,183.52

1,187 .58

1,052 88
274,60

1,327.67

2,064.72
131827
926,70
218.17
1777

4 54772

B,318.04

7.062.97

For and an behall of the Board of Directors

K. K. Gupta
Chalrman

Rajeav Bajaj
Managing Director
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30™ JUNE, 2014

(Amount in "Lacs)

Year ended 30th June
Mate 2014 2013

{Rupees) (Rupees)
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 1 24, 334 89 18,681.73
Other Income 22 164.14 B4 &7
Total Income 24.499.03 20,076.40
EXPENSES
Cosd of Raw Material Consurmed 23 T31.56 131,74
Purchases of Stock in Trade 24 19,022.31 16.732.48
Changes in Inventores of Finlshed Goods & Work-in-progress 25 {371.60) (136.42)
Emplayee Benafils Expensza 28 1.036.03 ga0.1a
Finance Cost i B.05 5.24
Depreciation and Amorlisation Expense 24 67.46 58.906
Other Expenses 29 _3,085.08 _ 265713
Total Expenses 23,578.89 18,138.32
Profit Before Tax 82014 237.08
Tax Expense
Courrent Tax a0 - =
Drefarred Tax 22277 {585.02

22277 (595.02)

Profit for the year B87.a7 1,632.10
Basic & Diluted Eamings per Share (in Rupesas) Face Valus a7 6.49 14.26
Signéficant Accounting Policies & 1to 54

Maotes 1o the Accounts

This i the Statement of Profit & Loss referred o i owr repart of even date

For and on behalfl of the Board of Directors

for Ray & Ray

Chartered Accountanis

A, K. Sharma K. K. Gupta Rajeev Bajaj
Partnar Ashish Srivastava Subhash Chand Nagpal Chairman Managing Director

Membership no. 80085
Firm's Registration Mumber 301072E
Mew Dalhi, 27 August, 2014

Company Secretary  Conirolier and GM-Accounts
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

A Cash fiow from operating actiities -
Prafit before {ax
Adjuslmeanls for
Gratuily
Leerem Encastmen
Supstannsaion
Promision | Wike off | Dedis 4 Atvencas
Pegmadsaton
Inigsask Incgms
Prowsion | Linksl s Winthan Bach
Loss on Gale ! Discand of Asseis {re)
Uresatsed Fomsign Exchange {Gain) / Loss
Firemoa Cost
Ciperating prolit befors Working Capial Changes
Adpustmenis for
Trade and Olher Recelvablies
Inverdones
Trade and Ciher Payables
Cesh Gereraled from Opemdions
Paymesn of Direct Taxes
M Cash Iroems Ciperaling Activilss

B Cash Flow from Imnmsting Activities ©

Purthise af Fied Assets
Sale of Fosd Assis
Inberest R e
Changas in Olhar Bank Balances
W Cash genaratod [mam invasting Rectivitas

€. Coash Flpw from Financing Activities
Shor-Tarm Bormowargs
Dividerd Paid
Tax on Qividand Paid
Intmrest Paid
het Cash used in Fimancing Activiting

Med Increase!Decraase | in Cash ( Cash Equivalerd (A+B+C)

Cash ond Cash Equivaten! am al tha beginning of e yoar
Cash nnd Cash Egurmabent as al the end of the yaar

Mobes:

(1} The Cash Flow sialement hes been prs pared under the indirect method as sal oul in the-Absouniing Standsd {AS). - 3

[Amount in ‘Lacs)

Yaar anded 30th Juns
14

220,14

138.09)
235
.51
2108
87,48
{358.14)
{35.62)
4.48
(0.11)
B8
834,08

(TO.0)
(308.98)
50048
620,62
(204.58)
475,04

{50.57)
nT
38.40
{40.40)
T Eies

1831
{164.48)
27.39)
{1.58)
173,88
190921
74808
48,20

12} Pravious period's igures Pave been regrouped | reciassified and | o rearranged wihersver necsssan b confiorm 1o the cumant years grouping and classilications,

This is the Cash Flow Slatemen. ralermed o n o report of even dale

Far RAY & RAY
Chartered Actouriants

A K. Sharma

Partner

Kernberahip Mo, 80085

Firm's Angisrason no, 010TZE

Mew Dalhl, 27 August, 2014

Ashish Seivasinva Sulshash Chand Nagpal
Company Secretary  Controller and GM-Aooounts

2013
(Rupees)

B37.08

4324
2354
418
478
56,99
(E337)
[#31 8E]
Fiel]
(&3
825
TO0 54

{Ea5.11)
(156 18)
140.49
#7.78
(161.15)
{T3.43)

{105 54)
158
8,29
13732
Wz

227
|2.27)
25.42

T20.57
Talh.29

Far and en bahatl of the Baard of Direciors

K. K. Gispla Rajeny Bagaj
Ghaiman Managng Dirocioe

0 Singer India Limited/Annual Report 2013-2014




—_— —_—
-_— — o _—

Sg S
SINGER INDIA LIMITED

—— ?:ﬂ
— e
=

(T

ﬁ—?nmiﬁanmng

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

(a)

(B)

(c)

Corporate Information

Singer India Limited ('the Company') is a Public
Company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.
The Company is engaged in the business of
trading / manufacturing in sewing machines and
also conducts limited trading in small appliances,
houseshold / consumer durables. The Company
has also underlaken confract manufacturing of
sewing machines.

Significant Accounting Policles {d)
Basis of Preparation

These Financial Statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP)
under the histonical cost convention on accrual
basis, except for carfain tangible assets which are
camed at revalued amounts. These Financial
Statements have been prepared fo comply in ail
material aspects with the accounting standards
notified under section 211(3C) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (The 2013 Act) [which continue to be
applicable in respect of Section 133 of the (el
Companies Act 2013 (The 2013 Act) in terms of
general circular 152013 dated 13th Sepltember
2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs] and the
relevant provisions of the 1956 Act / 2013 Act as
spplicable. The accounting policies have been
consistently applied by the Cempany and are
consistent with those used in the previous year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Financial Statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires the management to make
estimates and assumplions thal affect the
raporting balances of assets and liabiliies and if
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at

the date of the financial statements and reporting
amounts of income and expenditure during the

year. Confingencies are recorded when it
probable that a liability will be incurred, and the
amount can be reasonably estimated. Actual
results could differ from such estimates. Any
revision to accounting estimates is recognised in (gl
the period the same is determined

Tangible Fixed Assets
Fixed Assels are stated al cosl (or revalued

amount as the casa may be), less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, Cost

comprises the purchase price [ cost of acquisition
including taxes, duties, freight and ather incidental
expenses related to acquisition, construction and
installation to bring the assat to its working
condition for its intended use. Wherever assals are
revalued, amount added on revaluation based on
approved valuer's report is disclosed separately as
required by the Companies Act, 1956. Borrowing
costs that are directly attributable to acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalized.

Intangible Fixed Assets

Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortization and net of impairments,
if any. An intangible asset is recognized if it is
probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow o
the Company and its cost can be measured
rediably. Intangible assets having finite useful lives
are amorized on straight line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Computer Software is
amortised over a period of thirty slx months is done
on the siraight line mathod.

Impairment of Assets

Regular review is done to determine whether there
is any indication for impairment in carrying amount
of the Company’s fixed assets, If any indication
exists, an assets recoverable amount is estimatad
based on internal [ external factors. An impairment
loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amounl. The recoverable
amgunt is the greater of the asset's net selling price
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
prasent valug at the weighted average cost of
capital.

Investments

Long term investments are stated at cost. Provision
for diminution in value, other than temporary, is
made in the accounts, Eamings on investments are
accountad for when the right to receive payment is
establizhed.

Inventories

Inventories (Finished Goods and Work-in-
progress) are valued at lower of cost or net
realisable value, on the basis of physical
verification carned out by the management, Cosl is
arrived at on FIFO basis and includes appropriate
portion of allocable overheads. Cost of finished
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(h)

i}

(k)

goods includes excise duty. Net realizable value is
the estimated selling price in ordinary course of
business, less estimated cost necassary o make
the sala. Raw Materials are valued at cost (FIFO
basis). Goods in transit are valued at cost. Cost of
inventories have been computed to include all
costs of purchases, cost of conversion and othar
costs incurmed in bringing the inventories to their
preseant location and condition.

Warranties

Product warranty costs are determined using
reasonable estimates based on costs incurred in
the past and are provided for in the year sala is
made. GContractual obligations in respect of
warranties includes estimates made for the
producis sold by the Company which are covered
under free replacement warranty on manufacturing
defects | breakages efc, in respect of sewing
machines and household consumer durables /[
amall appliances and are accrued at 1% of sales to
cover fulure costs,

Excise Duty

Excise duty is accounted for at the point of
manufaciure of goods and accordingly, is
considered for valuation of finished goods stock
lying in the factory and branches and as on the
Balance Sheet date.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
company and the revenue can be reliably
measumed. Revenue from sale of goods is
recognized when all significant risk and rewards of
the ownership are ransferred 1o the buyer as per
the terms of sales which coincides with the
despatch of the goods. Revenue is recorded net of
value added tax / sales tax, retums and gross of
excise duty, if any. Interest income is recognized
an lime proporticnale basis taking info account the
amaount outstanding and the rate applicable and is
stated at gross. Export incentive are accounted on
accrual basis.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis at

the per annum rates (with the corresponding useful
life) specified below:

n

(m)

Assets Percentage Estimated useful

life in years
Building 3.34% 30 years
Plant and

machinery 4.75% to 25% 4 years to 21 years

Vehicles 25% 4 years
Office

equipment 20% 3 years
Furniture

and fixtures 20% 5 years
Computers 33.33% 3 years
Leasehold

Improvements  33.33% 3 years

Assets costing less than Rs. 50004~ par unit are
depreciated at the rate of 100%. Depreciation on
additions is provided on prorata basis from the date
of such additions. Similarly, depreciation on assets
soldfidisposed off during the year is provided up 1o
the date on which such assels are sold/disposed
off. Leasehold improvements represent renovation
in new shops openead.

The difference between depreciation calculated
and provided on the revalued amount of fixed
assets and depreciation calculated on the orginal
cost of fixed assets is recouped from Revaiuation
Reserve.

Lease

Leases wheare the lessor effectively retains
substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership
of the leased assets are classified as operating
lzases. Operating lease paymants are recognized
as an expense in the Statement of Profit & Loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the
reporting currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate betwean the
reporting currency and the foreign currency at the
date of the transaction.

Forelgn currency monetary flems are reporied
using the closing rate. Mon-monetary items, which
are carried In lerms of historical cost denominated
in a foreign currency, are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arsing on the settlemant
of monetary items or on reporting company's
monetary items at rates different from those at
which they were initially recorded during the year,
or reported in previous financial statemeants, are
recoqnised as income or 8s expenses in the year in
which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Employees Benefits

Shaort Term Employeea Benefil is recognized as an
expansa in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the
year in which related service is rendered. Post
employment and other Long Term Employes
Benefitz are provided In the Accounts in the
following manner:

i Gratuity: Mainlained as a defined banefit
retirement plan and contribution s made
to the Life Insurance Corporation of
India, as per the Company's Scheme.
Provision / write back, if any is made on
the basis of the presenl wvalue of the
liability as at the Balance Sheel date (q)
determined by actuarial wvaluation
following projected Unit Credit Method
and is treated as liability,

iy Leave Encashment: As per independent
actuarial valuation as at the Balance
Sheet date following projected Unit
Credit Method in accordance with the
requirements of Accounting Standard
AS-15 on 'Employee Benefit' is included
in provisions.

i) Provident Fund: Liability on account of
Provident Fund (Pension) for employees
iz a defined contribution wherever
contributions are made 1o a fund
administered by Government Provident
Fund Authority,

For employees, Provident Fund administered by a
Recognised Trust, is a Defined Beneafit Plan (DBF)
wherein the employee and the Company make
manthly contributions, Pending the issuance of
Guidance Mote from the Acluarial Society of India,
actuanal valuation is not carmed out and the ir)
Company provides for required liability at year end,

in respect of the shaortfall, if any, upon confirmation

from the Trusteas of such fund.

Research and development

Research and developmen! expenses of revenue is)
nature are charged to the Statement of Profit &
Loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Taxes on Income

Income Tax is accounted for in accordance with
Accounting Standard on “Accounting for Taxes on
Income” nobfied pursuant to the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rulas, 2006.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) is accounted for in
accordance with tax laws which give rise 1o fulura
economic benafits im the form of tax credits against
which future income tax liability is adjusted and is
recognized as an assetin the Balanca Sheal.

Deferred Tax is provided and recognized on timing
differences belween taxable Income and
accounting income subject to prudential
consideration. Deferred Tax Asset on unabsorbed
depreciation and carry forward of losses are
recognized when there is virlwal cerainty about
availability of future taxable income to realize such
assels,

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent
Assels

Frovisions are recognized when there is a present
legal or statulory obligation as a resull of past
events and where it is probable that there will ba
outflow of resources to settle the obligation and
when a reliable estimate of the amourt of tha
obligation can be made.

Contingent Liabilities are recognized only when
there is a possible obligation arising from past
events due to cCourrence or non-occumence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company or where any present
obligation cannot be measured in terms of future
outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of
the obligation cannot be made, Obfigations are
assessed on an ongoing basis and only those
having a largely probable outflow or resources are
provided for.

Contingent Assets are not recognized in the
Financial Statements.

Earnings per share

Eamning per share is calculated by dividing the nat
profit or loss for the year attributable to egquity
shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the yaar.

Events after the Balance Sheet date

Events occurring after the date of the Balance
Sheet which affect the financial position to a
material extent are taken into cognizance.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

{(Amount in 'Lacs)

As at 30th June
2014 2013
{Rupees) (Rupees)
3
SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED
15,000,000 (2013 - 15,000,000 Shares) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 1,500.00 1,500.00
500,000 (2013 - 500,000 Shares) Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each 500.00 500.00
2,000.00 2,000.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & FULLY PAID UP
10,743,135 (2013 - 10,743,135 Shares) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 1,074.31 1,074.31
1,074.31 1.074.21
Notes
a) Reconciliation of Equity Shares
As at June 30, 2014 As at June 30, 2013
Mumber of Mumber of
R
shares Rupees shares Hpess
At the beginning of the year 10,743,135 1,074.31 10,743,135 1,074.31
Issued during the year ) - - -
At the end of the year 10,743,135 1,074.31 10,743,135 1,074.31

b) The Company's Authorised Capital comprises of two class of shares. The Equity shares have a parvalue of Rs. 10 each
and Preference shares have a par value of Rs, 100 each, No Preference Shares have been issued,

€) Terms [ Rights attached to the Equity Shares

d)

The Company has at present one class of shares i.e. equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each holder of
equity shares is entifled to one vole par shara, The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. Tha
dividend if any, is proposed by the Board of Directors & is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeling. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to
recgiva remaining assels of tha Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in

propantion 1o the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

Shareholder's holding more than 5% of Equity shares at the end of the year in the Company

Mame of the shareholders As at June 30, 2014 As at June 30, 2013

Mumber of a, MNumber of "
Singer (India) B.V. Netherlands shares shares
The Holding Company
8,057,351 75.00 8,057,351 75.00

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declaration received fram
the shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownarships
of shares.

8,177,900 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each were alioted through preferential basis as fully paid up to Singer (India) B.V.
Metherlands the Holding Company consequent to compliance with the scheme of rehabilitation sanctioned by the
Haon'ble BIFR, Out of which 8,27 800 Equity Sharas of Rs, 100~ each were alloted by converting 10% amount borrowed
from them in form of external commercial borrowing.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

4.
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Securities Pramium
As per last account

Revaluation Resarve:(Note 37,1 & 37.2)

#As par Last Account

Additions during the year

Less : Transferred to Statement of Profit & Loss

General Reserve |
As per last Account
Add : Transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss

Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss:
As per last account

Add: Profit during the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss

Less : Appropriations

Transferred to Genesal Resarve

Propozed Dividend on Equity Shares (Note 39}
Tax on proposed dividend on Equity Shares
Balance at the end of year

5.

OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Security Deposit

Other Liabilities

6.

LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Emplayees Benefits:
Leave Encashment

T.
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Loans Repayable on Demand
From Banks - Cash Credit

(Amount in ‘Lacs)

As at 30th June
2014 2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)
122.50 122 50
835,57 =
g 835.57
{15.11) :
920.48 B35.57
76.61 -
34.87 7661
111.48 76.61
1.520.24 253.29
697.37 1.532.10
{34.87) (76.81)
{161.15) (161.15)
(32.22) (27.39)
1,989.37 1.520.24
314381 2,654 92
12.07 12.73
55.31 71.85
67.38 B4.38
99,35 7016
98,35 70,16
16.21 -
16.21 -

The loan from J & K Bank is secured by hypothecation of stocks and book debts of Jammu unit and mortgage of leasahold rights of

building and land al Jammu. The rate of interest is base rate +3%.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

8.
TRADE PAYABLES

Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises & small Enterprises (Mote 34.1 & 34.2)
Tatal Qutstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises

9.
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance from Customers
Unclaimed maturad Fixed deposits and interest Accrued thereon®
Unclaimed Fractional Shares
Due to Singer Asia Limited - an Associate Company
Unpaid Dividend
Other Payables:
Canfribution payable towards Gratuity fund
Superannuation
Liability for Capital Expenditure
Security Deposit
For Selling Expenses
For Other Expenses
Statutory Dues

MNote ; Thers is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protecton Fund.
* The amount is pending settiement due to non-submission of Original Fixed Deposit receipts by public despite reminders.

10.
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

{Amount in ‘Lacs)

As at 30th June
2014 2013
{Rupees) (Rupees)
86.51 111.32
1,557,112 996.55
1,643.63 1,107.87
1498.58 54.67
3.86 3.86
0.23 023
6.26 4.47
0.78 -
10.95 50.04
2.61 2.10
2.85 11.28
67.63 55.84
561.98 56660
330.43 22485
166.85 136.67
1,304.01 1.110.71

Leave Encashmeni 425 12.09
Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 161.15 161.15
Tax on Dividend 3222 27.39
Income Tax (Mat of payments) 15.40 2032
Confingencies T57.32 T39.67
970,34 960.62
* Contingencies includes Opening Addition Dealetion/ Clesing
Balance Reversal Balance
Legal & Statutory Matters & 2014 156.80 17.46 43.22 131.04
2013 149,81 1271 5.82 156.80
Contractual Matters in the Course of Business ** 2014 J385.95 - - 385.95
2013 385.95 - - 385.95
Empioyees Related Matters # 2014 - - -
2013 241.23 - 241.23 -
Product Warranties 2014 196.92 43.41 - 240,33
2013 156.64 40.28 - 196.92
Tatal 2014 739.67 60.87 43.22 757.32
2013 933.73 52.89 247.05 739.67

=" Thx cispuie belween he Company and some of the Unsecured Credilors on the quanium of e payment [0 Do macde 10 them under the Sanclionsd
Schema of the Hon'ble BIFR. dated 28th April 2008 read withan amendment vide their order dated 24th February 2011 |s still pending before the Hon'ble
AMIFR . The Company however conlinues 1o carry the additonal provisson of Rs, 385,95 made in aafier year under Conlingencies by way of aburdam

accounting prudence while vigorously contesling the matter before the Compatent Authonties.

# The above malters are under litgation / negatiation and the timing of the cash flows cannot be currently determmned
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12,
NON CURRENT INVESTMENT
Investments in Equity Instruments (Non Trade - Unguoted)

Investment in Subsidiary Companies (Under Liquidation) (Note 53)

610,008 (2013-610,008 Shares) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paidupin
Singer India Trading Limited

100,008 (2013 - 100,008 Shares) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paidup in
Himec India Limited

Less: Provisions

Aggregale value of unguoted investment (before provisions)

13.
DEFERRED TAX ASSET-NET

Deferred tax Assets comprising of :

Fixed assets (excess of net block as per Income Tax Act, 1961 over book valua)
Lnabsorbed Business Losses & Depreciation

Retirement Benefits

Provision for Doubtiul Debts & Advances

SumsAllowable on Payment

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

(Amount in ‘Lacs)

As at 30th June

2014 2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)
61.00 61.00
10.00 10.00
71.00 71.00
71.00 71.00
71.00 71.00
43.67 42.71
514.19 718.87
3r.ie 42.93
10.76 3.39
22443 245.08
830.21 1.052.98

Based on continued improved performance, future projections taken on record and the current trend, the Company is of
the opinion that there is virfual certainty of sustainable profits in future years. Accordingly, the Company expects sufficient
fulure taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset on account of unabsorbed depreciation and

business loss will be realised in future.
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14.

{Amount in‘Lacs)

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES (Unsecured - Considered Good)

Capital Advances

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind for value to be
Considered Good

Cther Deposits

Prepaid Expenses

MAT Credit Enfitiement{Note-45)

15.
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

received

Long Term Trade Recelvables (Unsecured) {including in deferred credit term)

- Considered Good
- Considerad Doubtful

Less:-Provisions
16.
INVENTORIES *
Raw Material **

Woark-in-Progress-Sewing Machine
Finished Goods - Traded ***

Motes:

As at 30th June
2014 2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)
27.87 7.7
30.00 30.00
8.65 8.65
0.14 0.32
424.65 227.95
491.31 274 69
13.83 -
19.92 5.97
33.75 5.97
19.92 587
13.83 -
55.89 29.37
6.11 1.87
2,401.67 2,033.38
2,463.67 2,064.72

*Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value whicheveris lower,

*“*Includes Goods in Transit Rs. Nil (2013 - Rs. 3.24) and Rs. Nil (2013 - Rs. 14.50) lying with third party.

***Includes Goods in Transit Hs. 484.85 (2013 - Rs, 326.47) and Rs. 45.37 (2013 - Rs, 28.40) in transit Warehouse
to Warehouse and adjustment for obsolete stocks Rs. 17.69 (2013 - Rs. 7.29) and defective stock Rs. 25.94 (2013 -

Rs.22.22)
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{Amountin ‘Lacs)

As at 30th June
2014 2013

(Rupees) (Rupees)
17.
TRADE RECEIVABLES (Unsecured-Considered Good)
Qutstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date
they are due for payment - 1.84
Other Debts* 1,878.59 1,316.43

1,878.59 1,318.27

*Includes Rs. Nil (2013 - Rs. 178.79) from Brand Trading (India) Private Limited, an Associate company.

18.
CASHAND BANK BALANCES
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand 12.03 18.55
Cheguein Hand 1.94 -
Balances with Banks in CurrentAccounts B36.47 266.67
Fixed Deposits with maturity within 3 months 094.76 160.77
945.20 745.99
Other Bank Balances
Bank Deposits pledged as Security with Authorities 18.65 14.86
Margin Deposits 39.66 72.59
Unpaid Dividend Accounts 0.78 -
Fixed Deposits maturing more than 3 months but less than 12 months 164.20 95.35
1,168.49 928.79
19.
SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES (Unsecured-Considered good unless otherwise stated)
Advance recoverable in cash or kind for value to be received
- Considerad Good 59.98 61.43
- Considerad Doubtiul 10.55 1.78
Other deposits
- Considered Good 126.16 103.62
- Considerad Doubtful 2.70 270
Claims Recoverable from Custom Authorities 16.06 14.47
Deposit with Sales Tax Authorities under Protest 15.35 8.79
Incentives & Claims Receivable 4917 -
Prepaid Expenses 26.39 28.686
306.36 222,65
Less : Provision for doubtful Advances & Deposits
13.25 4.48
293.11 218.17
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(Amount in'Lacs)

As at 30th June
2014 2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)
20.
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Interest Accrued on Deposits 2.26 4.52
Other Receivables - Considerad Good (Unsecurad) 27.18 13.25
29.44 17.77
21.
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Products
- Domestic Sales 2405072 19,691.30
- Exports Sales 301.38 -
24,352.10 1969130
Less: Excise Duty 17.83 .

24,334.27 19.691.30

Other Operating Income
Service Income 0.62 0.43

2433489 19.691.73

Details of Sala of Products:

- Sewing machines and related accessories 22,027.93 18,315.29

- (Others (including Household and Consumer Durables) 2,306.34 1,376.01

22

OTHER INCOME

Interest Income 36.14 63.32

Scrap sales 34.57 AT

Export Incentives 19.41 1.04

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (net) 4.83 -

Provisions / Liabilities no Longer required Written Back 35.62 221.86

Miscellaneous income 33.57 67.28
164.14 384.67

23.

COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED

Opening Stock 29,37 a.79

Purchases® T37.30 141.55

Less : Closing Stock 55.89 29.37

Consumption 710.78 121.487
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Conversion Charges on Contract Manufacturing **
Direct Expenses

Details of Raw Material Consumed :

- Sewing machine Arm & Bed

- Sewing machine Parls Set

- Sewing machine other components

{Amount in 'Lacs)

As at 30th June
2014 2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)

1.71 .77
19.07 .
731.56 131.74
269.41 4117
341.05 50.12
100.32 30.68

*includes Rs.16.31 (2013 - Rs. 12.12) on account of material recovery from stocks written off in earlier years.

** Excise Duty Rs. 0.51 (2013 - Rs. 2,84 reimbursed fo Contract Manufacturer

24,
PURCHASE OF STOCKIN TRADE

Purchase of Traded Goods *

Details of Purchase of Traded Goods:
- Sewing machines and related accessories
- Others (including Household and Consumer Durables)

* Note
Includes Rs. 182.80 (2013 - Rs, 151.05) on free replacement against warranty.

25.
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS & WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Opening stock
Work-in-Progress
Finished Goods

Less : Closing Stock
Work-in-Progress
Finished Goods

Add : Increase in Excise Duty on Finished Goods
Increase / (Decreasa)in Stock

19,022.31 15.732.48
19,022.31 15.732.48
16,972.87 14.212.68
2,049.44 1.519.80
1.97 -
2,033.38 1.898.77
2,035.35 1,898.77
6.11 1.97
2.401.67 2.033.38
2,407.78 2,035.35
(372.43) (136.58)
0.83 0.16
(371.60) (136.42)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

26.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salary, Wages and Bonus ete.
Contribution to Frovident and other Funds
Staff Walfare Expenses®

* Includes staff training Re. 0.51 (2013-Rs. 0.19)

27.
FINANCE COST
Interest Expenses®

* Includes Income tax interest Rg. 2 96 (2013 - Rs 2 65)

28.

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
Tangible Assets

Intangible Assets

29,

OTHER EXPENSES

Sales Dutlet Variable Expenses

Freight Outward

Power & Fuel

Cash Discount

Rent/Lease Charges [Netof Recovery of Rs. 0.11 (2013 - Rs. 1.28]]
Repairs & Maintenance

Building

Plant & Machinery

Oihers

Insurance [Metof Recoveryof Rs.0.17 {2013 - Rs. 83})]
Rates & Taxes

Advertisement, Publicity & Other Promation Expenses
Trade Mark License Fee (including service tax)

After Sales Services

Product Warranties

Commission

Travelling, Conveyance & Car Maintenance

Postage, Telephone & Telex

(Amountin‘Lacs)

As at 30th June
2014 2013

(Rupeeas) {Rupeas)
921.88 615.18
67.53 44 60
46.62 30.41
1.036.03 630.19
B.05 5.24
8.05 5.24
65.52 58.22
1.824 0.74
67.46 58.96
110.25 83.98
442.58 34277
57.77 31.83
359.31 329.19
297.25 238.47
5.40 0.54
9.90 0.88
47.68 38.60
47.10 37.32
22.74 20.75
araT2 533.47
265.84 24B8.66
173.82 45.15
43.41 40.28
101.34 78.99
320.09 243.46
62.00 48.72
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

Printing & Stationery

Provision  Write Off Debts & Advances

Lagal & Profassional Expenses

Loss on Sale/ Discard of Assals [Metof Gain Rs. 0.52 (2013 -Rs.0.36) ]
Directors Sitting Fea

Auditors’ Remuneration (Mote 42)

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (MNet)

Meeting & Training

Bank Charges [net of Recovery Rs, 1.04 (2013-Rs 0.83)]
Miscellaneous Expenses

30.

TAX

Current Tax

- Income Tax

- Less: MAT Credit Entitlemeant

3.

A, Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of.

{Amount in ‘Lacs)

Asg at 30th June

2014 2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)
89.23 7.59
23.06 4.28
171.47 141.25
4.48 2.31
8.41 8.78
14.25 147
- 0.87
59.21 69.84
29.45 21.43
26.32 26.55
3,085.08 2,657.13
189.42 227.95
189.42 227.95

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided)

(i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debls pending appellate / judicial decisions”

a)
b
cl

Excize Duty
Value added tax { Sales tax
Others | including presenl & ex staff)

“As cerified by the management. No provision has been made

2014
{Rupaes)
£0.38
143.09
831.90

2013
(Rupees)
50.38
155.19
839.24

in tha financial statemeants as the Board of Directors and

Audit Committee consider the probability of the claim succeeding to be remote.

(i}
Letter of Credits (LC) Rs. 85.45 (2013 — Rs. 66,

Guarantees Rs 17.08 (2013 — Rs. 12.20) Margins against Guarantees Rs. 18.65 (2013 - Rs, 14.86).

63) margin against LC Rs. 39.66 lacs (2013 -

Rs. 72.59) outstanding against the Letter of Credit facility sanctioned by Yes Bank Limited. During the
current vear Yes bank Limited (YBL) has sanctioned Letter of Credit facility for working capital

purposes amounting to Rs. 500.00 with 40% margi

n in the form of fixed deposit to be lien marked in

favour of YBL. The above facility is secured by exclusive charge on entire current assets of the

Company excluding current assets of Jammu Plant.

Capital Commitments

The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not provided for net of

advances Rs. 22,90 (2013 -HRs. 10.33).

32. a)

reconciliation. Adjustment if any, arising out of this will be ac

Receivables, Advances, (Long & Short term) and Trade payables are under process of confirmation and

counted for in subseguent year.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

34.2

(Amount in ‘Lacs)

b} In the opinion of the Board, the value of any assets other than fixed assets do not have value on realization in
the ordinary course of business less than the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Shest and
provisions for known liabilities have been made. All contingent liabilities have been disclosed.

Disclosures in respect of Company's operating lease arrangements under Accounting Standard (AS) - 19 of
Leases.

a) General description of Company's operaling lease arrangements:

The Company has entered into operaling lease arrangements for office premises, shops, warehouse and
vehicles for its employees. Some of the significantterms & conditions of the arrangement ara:

- agreements are not non-cancellable in nature and may be terminated by either party by serving a notice.
- lease arrangements which are not non-cancellable are generally reanewable by mutual consent on
mutually agresable terms,

b} The Company has given a part of its office premises and warehouses on sharing basis which are not non-
cancellable are generally renawable by mutual consent or mutually agreeable terms.

c) Rentinrespectof aboveis charged / credited to the Staterment of Profit & Loss.

The Company has not received from majority of parties any information/ memorandum (as required to be filed by
suppliers [ vendors with the notified authority under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2008), claiming their status as Micro, Small or Medium Enterprises.

Details of dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises DevelopmentAct, 2008, based on information available with the Company in respect of post sickness
suppliers.
As at 30" June
2014 2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)

The principal amount due and remaining unpaid B6.51 111.32

There has neither been any delay in payment nor any interest is due and remaining unpaid on the above principal
or any other such dues during the year.

Disclosures pursuant toAccounting Standard-15 “Employee Benefits”

a) The Company makes contribution towards Employees’ provident fund and Employees® State Insurance plan
scheme. Under the rules of these schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs. The Company during the year recognized Rs. 45.38 (2013 — Rs. 28.97) lowards provident fund
and Rs, 4.95 (2013 = Rs. 1.84) as expense towards contribution to these plans. Out of the total contribution
made for employees’ provident fund a major part of the contribution is made to Singer India Limited Siaff
Provident Fund Trust and the balance amount in respect of pension fund is made to provident fund plan
operated by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, The funds of the trust have been invested under
various securities as prescribed under the rules of the trust. The Company also makes good the deficiency, if
any in the interest rate declared by the trust vis-a-vis the statutory rate.

b} The Company makes Superannuation Fund contribution to Life Insurance Corporation of India towards
defined contribution retirement for qualifying employees. The Company has FEWQF‘IIZE'U Rs. 5.64 (2013 -
Rs. 8.74) as expense lowards contribution made during the year.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

{Amount in ‘Lacs)
c) Defined Benefit Plan

i) Disclosure refating to Defined Benefit Plan as per Actuarial Valuation as on 30th June, 2014 using Projected
Unit Credit Method and recognized in the Financial Statements in respect of Employees Benefits Schemes.

51, st Gratuity Leave Encashment
No Description (Ru ) (Rapees)
As at 30" June As at 30" June
2014 2013 2014 2013
Expenses recognized in the statement of Profit
& Loss for the year ended 307 June 2014,
a) Current Service cost 14.59 11.58 46.20 43.00
b) Interast Cost 7.93 3,30 5.97 383
) Expacted retum on plan assets (5.76)| (3.94) N.A, MN.A
d) Meat Actuarial (Gains) / Losses (5.57) 48.55 (26.90) (20.72)
€] Past Service cost - - - -
n Total Expense 11.20 57.49 25.27 26.21

Met Asset / (Liability) recognized in the balance
sheet as on 30" June 2014

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 107.27 92 32 103.60 B2 75
as at 30" June 2014 ’ ‘ ’ ’

a)

b) Fair Value of plan assets as at 30" Juna 2014 96,32 42 28 5 =
c) Funded status {Surplus / (Deficit)} (10.95) | (50.04) {103.60) (B82.25)
d) Net assel / (liability) as at 307 June 2014 (10.85) | (50.04)" | (103.80) | (B2.25)

Change in Defined Beneafit Obligations (DBO)
during the year anded 30" June 2014

al Presant value of Defined Banefit Obligation at the

Faginning of the: year 92.33| 54.10 82.25 58.71
b) Service Cost 14.59 11.58 46.20 43.00
c) Interast Cost 7.93 3.30 5497 393
d) Past Service Cost - 2 & =
e)  |Actuarial ( Gains) Losses (4.29)| 4743 | (26.90) | (2072)
) Beneafit Paid (3.29) | (24.09) (3.92) (2.67)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

(Table Continued) (Amount in ‘Lacs)
Sl Desaription Gratuity Leava Encashment
No R (Rupees) (Rupees)

As at 307 June As at 30" June
2014 2013 2014 2013
Present value of Defined Beneafit Obligation
4] at the end of the year. 107.27 82.32 103.60 B2.25
Change inAssels during the yaar ended 30" June 2014
aj Plan assets at the beginning of period 42.28 47.30 = =
b} Expected Relurn on Plan Assels 5.T6 3.94 MN.A. MA
c) Contributions by Employer 50.29 14.24 * -
d) Actual benefits pald (3.29) | (24.09) (3.92) {2.67)
a) Actuarial Gains / (Loszes) on Plan Assels 1.28 0.89 -
fi Plan assets at the end of the year 96.32 42.28 - o
gl Actual return on plan assels 7.02 4.83 N.A. M.A,
Major categories of plan asseis as a percentage
of lotal plan Invested by LIC N.A. WA
*includes liability of Jammu Factory workers.
i) The actuarial calculations used to estimate commitments and expenses are based on the following assumption

which il changed, would affect the commitments size, funding requirement and expenses,

Gratuity Leave Encashments
S. No. Description (Rupees) (Rupess)
As at 30th June As at 30th June
2014 2013 2014 2013
a) Imputed rate of Interest (%) B.75 8 N.A. MLA,
b) Expected rate of retum on plan assets (%) B.75 8 M.A, M.A,
c) Mortality rate IAL 2006-08 Ultimate
d) Withdrawal rate - 1-3% - 5%
e) Salary Escalation (%) 8 T 8 ¥

The estimates of fulure salary increases in acluarial valuations, take account of inflation, seniority, promolion and
other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in employment market.
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36.

3t

3ar.2

39.

(Amount in 'Lacs)
i} Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:

= Gratuity (Funded)

2014 2013 202 201 2010
Defined benefit obligation 107.27 02.32 54.10 48.35 4273
| _Plan assets 96.32 42.28 47.30 46.26 4293
Surplus / {deficit) {10.85) {50.04) {6.80} i2.09) 0.20
Experence adjustmants on plan assals - = = = -
Exparience adjustments on plan liabilities (5.10) {42.02) {0.99) (0.97) (1.89)
¢« Leave Encashment (Non funded)
2014 2013 2012 201 2010
Defined benafit obligation 103.60 B82.25 58,71 G542 44 .42
Plan assets - - - - .
Surplus | (deficit) (103.60) {B2.25) (58.71) (65.42) (44.42)
Experience adjustments on plan assels = 3 = - =
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (34.12) (24.58) (7.24) i4.79) (9.55)

i) Gratuity expenses and Leave Encashment have been recognized under the head "Employees Benefil
Expense".

v} Thedisclosures included above are limited to the extent provided by the actuary.

The Company has reviewed the impairment of assets at the year end and noted that none of the assets have lobe
impaired as on 30th June, 2014,

The Company had appointed a Government Registerad approved valuer to assess the fair market value of
Leasehold Land and Building at Jammu and accordingly revalued the book value of Leasehold Land and Building
as at 30th June 2013. This resulted in increase in value of Leasehold Land and Building by Rs, 6518.06 and Rs.
316.51 respectively and creation of Revaluation Reserve aggregating to Rs. 935.57 in 2013.

Depreciation for the year as per Fixed Assel Schedule (Mote - 11) includes Rs. 15.11 (2013 — Rs. Nil) being
depreciation on the increased value of building due to the effect of revaluation and, accordingly. the same has
been adjusted from Revaluation Reserve Account,

The appeal filed by the Company and some of the unsecured creditors relating to the quantum of the money to be
paid to them under the sanctioned scheme of Hon'ble Board of Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (BIFR)
read with amended order is pending before the Hon'ble Appeliate Authority of Industrial and Financial
Reconstruction (AAIFR), Pending final outcome, further liability, if any, is not ascertainable,

Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

As at 30" June
2014 2013
Amount of Dividend proposed 161.15 161.15
Dividend per Equity Share (Rs.) 1.50 per share|1.50 per share
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40.1

40.2

41.

42,

43.

45,

{Amount in 'Lacs)
The details of foreign currency exposures that are not hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as
mentioned below:

Particulars 2014 2013
Foreign currency Amount | Foreign curency| Amount
(USD) (Rupees) (US0) (Rupees)
Creditors 76,598 46.03 48,930 29.21
Advance given fo supplier 9.056 544 - =

The Company does not use derivalive financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts and interest
rates swaps o hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations and interest rate or for trading /
speculation purposas.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide letter dated 31stJuly, 2014 has rejecied the Company’s application for approval
of payment of fixed retainership fee and other bonafide reimbursement [ benefits to Mr. KK, Gupta, Non-
Executive Director for the period 1st January, 2013 to 31st December, 2015 which was duly approved by the
shareholders on 12th November, 2013. Mr. KK Gupta was paid a sum of Rs. 25.61 (including Rs. 7.42 for earlier
years) and is holding the remuneration in trust of on behalf of the Company. The Company has made an
application for re-consideration and review on 21stAugust, 2014 to Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Auditors’ Remuneration (excluding service tax)

Particulars 2014 2013
{Rupees) (Rupees)
As Auditors 7.50 7.00
As Tax Auditor 2.25 225
For Limited review and certificalion 2.00 1.92
For Taxation matters 2.50 -
Total 14.25 11.47

The Company deals (trades / manufactures) mainly in sewing machines and also traded (limited) in small
appliances & Household/Consumer durables. The Company has also undertaken contract manufacturing. Small
appliances & household / consumer durables & contract manufacturing forms only a negligible percentage of total
turnover those are distinguishable and subject to same risks & retums on sewing machines. The Company's
operating business is organized and managed according to the nature of products and services provided to offer
similar products and serving similar markets. The primary reporting has been prepared on the basis of this
business segment. The disclosures as required under AS-17 on primary business segment has not been
provided as the Company deais only in one business segment based on risks & returns, the organization
structure and internal financial reporting. The Company also exports its products, but the disclosure as required
under AS-17 on geographic segment has not been provided as the total value of exports is less than 10% of total
revenLe.

The Company's manufacturing is also done under ‘contract manufacturing' by parties. Based on the legal opinion,
the liability to pay excise duty is of the contractor who is to pay excise duty on assessable value which has beenre-
imbursed by the Company ta them,

The Company has calculated its tax llability after considering Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT). This has not resulled
in an additional expense as MAT is to be set off against any future liability and accordingly MAT Credit Entitlemeant
has been shown under long-term loans & advances in Balance Sheet,

e Singer India Limited/Annual Report 2013-2014




S —
o Jrp——

SINGER INDIA LIMITED

(T

seumg

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

{Amount in 'Lacs)

46, In accordance with Accounting Standard on “Related Party Disclosures” (AS 18), the disclosure in respect of
transactions with the Company's related parties are as follows:
a) Mames of related parties® and description of relationships having transactions during the year:
i. Holding Company Singer (India) B.\. (Netherands)
i, Ultimate Holding Company Ratail Holding M.V, [Curacag)
i, Helding Company of SingerAsia  Singer Asia Limited {(Cayman Islands)
Holding B.V. (Metherlands)
i, Subsidiary Companigs Himec India Limited (under liquidation)
Singer India Trading Limited(under liguidation)
W, Associates Brand Trading (India) Pvt. Lid,
Singer Asia Holdings B.V. (Netherlands)
Singer Bangladesh Ltd.
Singer Industrias (Ceylon) PLC
Wi, Key Management Persannel Mr. K.K. Gupta, Chaimman
Mr. Rajeev Bajaj, Managing Director
vii.  Mama of related parties” where control exists having no transactions during the year:
Associates
Btindia Limited (B.\.1.} Singer Leazing (Thailand) Co. Ltd.
Reality (Lanka) Ltd, Singer Corporation Limited {Hong Kong)
Regnis (Lanka) PLC Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC
Regnis Appliances (Pwt. ) Lid. Singer Pakistan Limited
SewkoAsean Trading Limited (B.V.1L) Singer Srilanka PLC
Singer {Broker) Limited Singer Thailand Public Co. Limited
Singer (Pakistan) B.V. (Netherlands) Thailnvest B.\. (Netherdands)
Singer (Sri Lanka) B.V. (Netherands) Telshan (Pwvt) Ltd.
Singer (Thailand) B.V. {(Metherlands) SEWKO Holdings Lid. (Cayman Islands)
SingerAsia Finance BV, (Curacao) Brand Trading (Cambodia) Ltd. (Cambadia)
SingerAsia Holdings N.\. (Curacao) ReHo Limited {Cayman Islands)
Singer Bhold B.W. (Netherands) Singer Digital Media (Pvt.) Ltd.
Singer Service Plus Co. Lid. UCL Holdings VIl Ltd. (B.V.L.)
b) Details of transactions” in the ordinary course of business and at arms length and on commaercial tarms:
Balance as on Balance as on
Transactions 2014 | 30" June 2014| 2013 | 307 June 2013
(Credit) / Debit {Credit) / Debit
(Rupees) {Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees)
Halding Company |
i} | Equity Shareholding - (805.74) - {805.74)
ii) | Dividend # 120.86 (120.86) 120.86 (120.86)
Subsidiary Company |
i} | Imvestment in Himec India Lid. - 10.00 - 10.040
iv) | Investment provision— Himec India Ltd. - (10.00) - (10.00)
¥} | Investment in Singer India Trading Ltd. - 61.00 - 61.00
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{(Amount in 'Lacs)

(Table Continued)
Balance as on Balance as on
Transacltions 2044 |30"June 2014| 2013 | 30" June 2013
{Credit) / Debit {Credit) / Debit
(Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupeeas)
vi) | Investment provision — Singer India Trading Ltd. - (61.00) - (61.00)
vit) | Advanced received from Singer (India) Trading Ltd. - - - -
Associate Companies ;
viii} | Sales to Brand Trading {India) Pvt. Lid. 15.09 - 1,088,386 -
ix) | Amount recovered from Brand Trading
(India) Private Limited
- Rent 0.11 - 1.28 =
- Insurance 0.17 - 0.83 -
%) | Trade receivable from Brand Trading (India) - - - 178.79
Private Limited
®i) | Trade Mark License fee to Singer Asia 236.60 (61.30) 221.31 (221.31)
Hoidings B.V. (Netherlands)
xii) | Purchase of goods & services from Singer {1.79) {6.26) 2.27 (4.47)
Asia Limited (Cayman Islands)
xiii) | Export made lo Associates :
Singer Bangladesh Ltd. 301.47 - - -
Singer Industries (Ceyvion)PLC 0.21 - =
xiv) | Operating Lease Agreements with a 1.80 (0.15) 1.80 (0.15)
relative of a directors
xv) | Managerial rﬂmur:;ratinn to
Key personnel;
Mr. K. K. Gupta 20.78* 177 (0.06)
Mr. Rajeev Bajaj 58.83 {0.3) 51.07 (0,18)

* As identified and certified by the Management
** includes Retainer-ship fee and bonafide reimbursement / benefits Rs. 19.43 (2013 — Rs. 15.97) and Sitting fee
Rs. 1.35(2013-Rs.1.20)
# Dividend is subject to Shareholder's approval at ensuing Annual General Meeting and is to be remitted in foreign
currency 1o non-resident sharaholder.

47. Earnings per share
Year ended 30" June
Farticulars 204 2013
{Rupees) (Rupees)
Met Profit after laxation as per Statement of Profit & Loss 697.37 1,632.10
Weighted average number of Eguity Shares outstanding 10,743,135 10,743,135
Basic and Diluted earnings per Equity Share of face value Rs. 10 (in Rupesas) 6.49 14.26
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88

Trade Mark Licenze Fee
Others

FOB value of exports — on acerual basis
CIF value of imports — on accrual basis -Finished goods
Expenditure in foreign currency during the year (on accrual basis)

51. Value of imported and indigenous Raw material consumed :

{Amount in 'Lacs)

2013
{Rupees)

2014
(Rupees)
301.38

3,537.16 2.321.52

221.31
1577

236.60
6.15

S No. Particulars

2014

2013

% of Consumption

Rupees

% of Consumption Rupees

i Imported

i) Indigenous

100%

710.78

100% 121.97

Total

100%

710.78

100%

121.97

52. Details of dividend remitted during the year in foreign currency are given below :

Year ended 30" June

2014
{Rupees)

2013
{Rupees)

Ashish Srivastava
Company Secretary

1 R
8,057,351 -
120.86 -
2012-13 -

Name of non-resident shareholder
Number of Equity Shares held
Amount of dividend paid

Year o which dividend relales

alo|lojm

The Company had decided to voluntary wind up both its subsidiary companies viz., Singer India Trading Limited
and Himec India Limited as there were no business transactions taking place in these two companies for the [ast
saveral years. Presently, the Company had complied with all the procedural requirements in regard to
members’ voluntary winding up and has completed the filing of all requisite forms with the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs and has issued all intimaticns, announcements [ publications in regard to the winding up of these two
Companies in the Official Gazette. As on date the matter is pending with the Official Liquidators' office for filing
the winding up petition in the High Courl of Delhi. As such, the Company has not prepared the consolidated
accounts.

The Previous year's figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary. Amount

and other disclosure for the preceeding year are included as an integral part of the current year's Financial
Statements and are to be read in relation to the amount and other disclosure relating to the current year,

On behalf of the Board of Directors

K.K. Gupta
Chairman

Rajeev Bajaj
Managing Director
Subhash Chand Nagpal
Controller and GM-Accounts

MNew Delhi, 27" August, 2014
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